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JOHN LEWIS PLC

Strategic report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015

John Lewis plc (‘the Group’ or ‘the Company') present their audited consolidated financial statements
for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015

The Company is the principal trading subsidiary of John Lewis Partnership plc (‘the Partnership’}, and

owns Waitrose Limited The Group includes John Lewis and Waitrose and has 93,800 employees —or
Partners — for whom the Partnership 1s owned in trust

Review of Performance

Key performance indicators

2015* 2014
Gross sales per average FTE (£000) 1816 1820
Partnership profit per average FTE (£) 5,500 6,700
Number of Partners 93,800 91,000
Number of stores 380 345
Selling space (m sq ft) 105 100
Gross sales per selling sq ft (£) 1,045 1,024
Gross sales growth (%) 76 66
Operating margin (%) 46 47
Profit before Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional item (£m) 34186 3759
Partnershup profit margin (%) 35 42
Cash flow from operations (Em) 892 784
Capital expenditure (Em) 659 533
Return on invested capital (ROIC) % 76 85

* = ¢alculated on a 53 week basis

Performance summary

John Lews pic achieved a strong sales performance with increased market share in both Waitrose
and John Lews, and customer numbers up by 6% and 4% respectively Profit before Partnership
Bonus, tax and exceptional items 1s down 9 0% (down 10 5% on a 52 week basis), with increased
profits in John Lewis offset by a decline in Waitrose

In its 150th year, John Lewis increased gross sales by 9 2% to £4 43bn (7 5% on a 52 week basis)
and operating profit grew by 10 8% to £250 5m (10 4% on a 52 week basis) The investments made
over a number of years in systems, logistics and IT infrastructure, combined to enable John Lewis to
make maore deliveries via Click & Collect than to customers’ homes for the first tme John Lewis was
able to fulfil over 6 4m orders over the year with 98 7% of parcels in store the following day




JOHN LEWIS PLC

Strategic report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 continued

Waitrose grew sales by 6 5% to £6 51bn {4 6% on a 52 week basis) with like for Iike sales up 1 4%
Operating profit fell by 23 4% to £237 4m (down 24 4% on a 52 week basis), held back by three
factors the impact of trading in a highly competitive and deflationary market, a significantly higher
level of nvestment in the year, and the impact of one-off items, including property smparrments and
onerous leases

Qur 93,800 Partners recerved a Bonus of 11%, equivalent to nearly 6 weeks' pay for Partners with us
for the whole year And for the first time in 15 years, thanks to the new legislation that puts Employee
Ownership on a similar footing to other forms of ownership, no Partner will pay tax on theirr Bonus up
to £3,600

Outlook 2015/16

There 15 an expectation that the returns for the grocery sector to be matenally lower for a period of
time Wantrose's value perception has improved significantly over the last few years and we will
continue to defend that hard won position duning this penod of change in the grocery sector

For John Lews, the outlook 1s more robust Ther focus remains on posiioning therr brand to
outperform and investment in supply chain and systems, which has been growing for some years, will
exceed that in new shops and refurbishment for the first time this year

Financial results

In 2014/15 the Partnership delivered good sales growth Both Waitrose and John Lewis grew sales
well ahead of therr respective markets, increasing market share Partnership gross sales (Inc VAT)
were £10 94bn, an increase of £771 1m, or 7 6%, on last year (5 7% on a 52 week basis) Revenue,
which 15 adjusted for sale or return sales and excludes VAT, was £¢ 70bn, up by £673 2m or 7 §%
(5 6% on a 52 week basis)

John Lews plc cperating profit before exceptional items was £439 8m, down by £28 7m or 6 1% on
last year (down 7 5% on a 52 week basis) Last year, following a review of the Partnership’s hohday
pay policy, an exceptional cost of £47 3m was recorded This year, following a reassessment of the
total costs that were recognised, we have released remaining labilities as exceptional income of
£7 9m Partnership operating profit, including exceptional items, was £447 7m, up £26 5m, or & 3% on
last year (4 7% on a 52 week basis)

Profit before Partnership Bonus, tax and excepttonal items was £341 6m, down by £34 3m or 9 1% on
last year (down 10 6% on a 52 week basis) After including the exceptional items, it was £349 5m, up
by £20 9m, or 6 4% on last year {4 7% on a 52 week basis)

Our Partners, as co-owners, each receive the same percentage of pay as Partnership Bonus, which
flexes from year to year reflecting the performance of our business Pariners will share £156 2m n
profit, which represents 11% of pay or the equivalent of nearly 6 weeks' pay

Partners also continue to benefit from a number of other benefits In total we have invested £773m in
benefits to our Partners, including Partnership Bonus, pensions, Partner discount, catenng subsidy,
long service leave, leisure spending and the running of our five holiday centres




JOHN LEWIS PLC

Strategic report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 continued

Waitrose

Gross sales for the year grew by 6 5% to £6 51bn (4 6% on a 52 week basis), with like-for-like sales
up 1 4% Woaitrose had, on average, 400,000 more customer transachons a week compared to last
year and theirr market share grew to 5 4%

Operating profit was down by 23 4% to £237 4m (down 24 4% on a 52 week basis), held back by a
signuficantly higher level of iInvestment in the year in new branches and IT resilence, and the impact of
one-off tems The year-on-year impact on Waitrose profits from these factors were approximately
£30m and £27m respectively The remaining profit decline of £26m, after excluding property profits, 1s
primarily the impact of trading in a highly competitive and defiationary market One-off items include
property imparrments and onerous lease costs (£16m), and costs associated with the planned closure
of our Acton com fulfilment centre {£4m)

Against the backdrop of a tough market where prnices are faling and customer shopping patterns are
changing, their strategy of investing to create the modern Waitrose has supporied them in increasing
sales, growing customer transactions and gaining market share

As part of a co-owned business, Walitrose 1s able to take the long-term wview and sc it has
invested in new and existing space, mproving {T capability and strengthening supply chain In
addition they continued to build ther online business, convenience offer, hospitality and services in
our branches and — through the myWaitrose card — theirr understanding of our customers

In the year they opened 13 new core branches (including eight acquired from the Ceo-operative) and
another 20 convenience shops The launch costs associated with this opening programme and the
expected lower returns from new space in the early months impacted profit this year

John Lewis

John Lewis continued to outperform the market with gross sales up 9 2% to £4 43bn {7 5% on a 52
week basis), beating the BRC by 4 9%, combined with growth in operating profit, up 10 8% to
£250 5m (10 4% on a 52 week basis)

Every channel and category grew during the year On a 52 week basis, shop sales were up 2 2% with
LFL shop sales growth at 0 6%, while johnlewis com saw an increase of 21 6% to £1 4bn

John Lewis saw the significance of new ways to shop and changing customer expectations in two key
shifts 1n consumer behaviour First, Click & Collect overtook home delivenes this year, now
accounting for 54% of online orders, and secondly, a new shape of peak trade was firmly established
with Black Friday marking its busiest single day Distribution and online operations stocd up well to
the challenges and allowed John Lewis to deliver on a 'logistics Chnistmas’

All three categories (Fashion, Home and EHT)} saw increases in sales and in market share On a 52
week basis

+« Fashion had a particularly strong performance, up 8 3%, with growth from nursery at 16 3%,
childrenswear at 8 2%, women's accessories at 8 5% and our own-brand Kin range at 46 6%

» Home was up 7 2% with furniture the highhght at 12 8%, floor covering up 6 1% and our House
range continuing to grow at 24 2% They also signed up to WWF's Forest Campaign, joining
other retailers in a collaborative effort to support responsible forest trade

« EHT was up 7 9%, performing well across the year, despite a challenging market, with large
electnical at 12 5% and audio at 23 4%




JOHN LEWIS PLC

Strategic report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 continued

In John Lewis' physical estate, two convenience-dnven shop formats gpened at London’s St Pancras
station and Heathrow Terminal 2, and the new flexible format shop 1n York has seen trade exceed
expectations |n existing shops, there was further enhancement of the in-store customer expenence
by opening Opticians and expanding third party catening offenngs, and completed a major
refurbishment of their Southampton shop, which now includes a Little Waitrose within the branch

While omnichannel capability and mnovation remain at the heart of their success, logistics came to
the forefront in driving differentiation and delivenng to changing customer expectations 2014 saw
investment of £92 5m in IT and systems, which set the foundations of a fully joined-up customer
expenence across the customer journey Work continued on the second distnbution centre in Magna
Park, which means over 1 3 million sq ft of space when combined with the existing Magna Park site
They have also announced the opening of a third distnbution centre In Milton Keynes in 2016

In John Lewis’ 150th anniversary year, they took time to mark the history of their business at a one-off
celebratory event for Partners from across the UK, as well as creating a range of mnovative products
through brand and designer collaborations The 150th anniversary year saw over £0 6m raised
through therr chanty partnership with Barnardo's

The pace of change looks set to continue in 2015, with the strongest retallers combining bricks and
chcks to create the customer service levels and convenience that customers want In 2015 John
Lewis will open a regional flagship shop in Birmingham, setting a new benchmark in bricks and mortar
retailing

Partnership Services and Group

Parinership Services and Group includes the operating costs for Group coffices and shared services,
as well as the costs for transformation programmes and certain pension operating costs Partnership
Services and Group net operating costs decreased by £19 6m to £48 1m reflecting an increase n the
share of pension and shared service costs charged to Waitrose and John Lewis

investment in the future

Capital investment in 2014/15 was £670 9m, an increase of £175 9m (35 5%) on the previous year
This includes £143 2m invested in freehold properties, an increase of £87 4m on the previous year,
and includes six freehold branches purchased from the Co-operatve

The majonty of our spend continues to be Invested in our store base, either on new stores or the
refurbishment of existng ones However, to enhance the agility and robustness of our systems and
infrastructure and invest in our future capability given the changing dynamics within retail, we have
also significantly increased our capital iInvestment in distnibution and IT in the year

Investment in Waitrose was £388 5m, up £100 8m (35 0%) on the previous year, and in John Lewis
investment was £231 9m, up £67 1m (40 7%)

Pensions

The pension operating cost before exceptional items was £194 5m, an increase of £26 8m or 16 0%
on the prior year costs The increase reflects changes to financial assumptions, growth in scheme
membership and a one-off cost in the year of £6 5m for an increase in future pension labilihies
following our decision to take all paid overtime into account when calculating holiday pay for Partners,
for holiday taken from 1 November 2014 Pension finance costs were £37 6m, an increase of £2 3m
or 6 5% on the prior year, reflecting a higher accounting pension deficit at the beginning of the year




JOHN LEWIS PLC

Strategic report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 continued

than at the beginning of the previous year As a result, total pension costs before exceptional items
were £232 1m, anincrease of £29 1m or 14 3%

Following the conclusion of the tnenmal actuarial valuation of our defined benefit pension scheme as
at 31 March 2013, we agreed to increase the ongoing contribution rate to 16 4% of members’ gross
taxable pay and put in place a plan to eliminate the deficit over a 10 year perniod through a one-off
contnbution and annual deficit reduction contributions However, to secure long term debt at low
interest rates, we 1ssued a £300m bond in December 2014 and used the net proceeds of the 1ssue to
prepay almost 7 years of the previously-agreed deficit reduction contributions to the pension scheme
In the year, total contnbutions to the pension scheme therefore totalled £492 8m, an increase of
£229 9m or 87 4% on the pnor year

The total accounting pension deficit at 31 January 2015 was £1,249 3m, an increase of £245 9m
(24 5%) since 25 January 2014 Net of deferred tax, the deficit was £1,018 4m The accounting
valuation of pension fund habilites increased by £1,082 8m (25 7%) to £5,301 Om mainly reflecting
market volatiity in the financial assumptions as the real discount rate used to value the habilities
decreased substantially from 1 10% at the beginning of the year to 0 35% at the end of the year
Pension fund assets increased by £836 9m (26 0%) to £4,051 7m, including the £294m one-off
contribution made by the Partnership in December 2014

The penston continues to be one of the most important benefits offered to Partners, but it also
accounts for the greatest single investment made each year by the Partnership We undertock a
review of the pension scheme to ensure that it remains fair to Partners and affordable from a business
perspective This review has taken two years and encapsulated significant communication, discussion
and debate across the Partnership The final proposal, which was unamimously approved by
Partnership Council, moves to a hybrnd scheme combining defined benefit and defined contribution
pensions, where future pension nisk 1s shared between Partners and the Partnership

Financing

In December 2014, we 1ssued a £300m 4 25% bond due in 2034 and used the net proceeds of
£294 1m to prepay previously-agreed deficit reduction contributions to the pension scheme As a
consequence, at 31 January 2015, net debt was £673 7m, an increase of £287 4m {74 4%)

Net finance costs on borrowings and investments decreased by £5 5m (9 7%) to £51 4m The year-
on-year decrease reflects the repayment of a £100m bond at the end of the previous year After
including the financing elements of pensions and long service leave and non-cash fair value
adjustments, net finance costs increased by £5 6m (6 0%) to £98 2m

Sustainability

This year we concluded our CSR matenality assessment, prionitising the i1ssues which are of the
greatest importance to our stakeholders, our Partners and to the commercial health of the business
This assessment will underpin future decisions on sustainability and community investment and will
help with our move to publishing an integrated Annual Report and Accounts

Existing inthatives have continued to deliver tangible benefits to our business, the environment and
the wider community For example, our new John Lewis store in York was awarded BREEAM
Outstanding status, the only department store in the world to achieve this benchmark for
environmental construction Waitrose was placed at the top of Compassion in World Farming's
Business Benchmark on Animal Welfare Finally, more than 3 5% of our pre-tax profits were nvested
in our communities through partnerships, donations, fundraising and velunteenng




JOHN LEWIS PLL.C

Strategic report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 continued

Principal risks and uncertainties

John Lewis plc’s principal nsks and uncertainties are in ine with John Lewis Partnership plc Details of
the Partnership’'s princtpal nsks and uncertainties are included within pages 44 to 45 of the
Partnership's Annual Report and Accounts

Inclusive ownership

Diversity & Inclusion (D&l) for us means doing business in a way that uniquely values everyone We
understand that recognising and valung difference helps us to make better decisions, spark
innovation, and develop talent Our Constitution requires that in our employment conditions we take
no account of age, sex, maritat status, sexual onentation, ethnic ornigin, social position or religious or
political views We refreshed our D&l policy in 2013 and we report annually to the Partnership

Board on our progress Qur approach is focused on

Resourcing inclusively to ensure we recruit, retain and progress a diverse population of Partners
Creating the nght conditions to support inclusive working by ensuring we have the nght policies
and processes In place

» Ensunng awareness and the right behaviours, so that working better together and inclusively
becomes nstinctive

+ Measuring and reporting the progress, effectiveness and impact of our activites We are keen to
ensure that our Partner population 1s reflective of the rapidly changing demographics of the
employment markets we operate In

In 2014/15, 87% of our Partners told us that they believe that the Partnership values individual
differences, placing us among the top 10% of organisations who tnclude this question in therr
employee survey 40% of our Partnership Board and 45% of our senior management population
(Levels 1-5) are female 15% of our Partners are from an ethnic minority

Gender diversity of the Parinership

2015 2014

Male Female Male Female

Partnership Board 60% 40% 60% 40%
Directors and Management Board numbers* 66% 34% 67% 33%
Senior managers™ 55% 45% 57% 43%
Al! other Partners 42% 58% 43% 57%
All Partners 43% 57% 43% 57%

* Other than Partnership Board members
** Other than Partnership Board members Directors and Management Board Members




JOHN LEWIS PLC

Strategic report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 continued

In late 2014, we centralised and improved our reporting to help us understand how representative our
recruitment process 1s at each stage We launched a new mandatory e-learning pregramme to build
Partner confidence, engagement and knowledge, and understanding of our policy and their personal
responsibilities We also began to roll out ‘unconscious bias’ training for managers

As well as our growing Pride in the Partnership (PIPs) Partner network group for LGBT Partners, we
now also have Partner groups for gender, faith and belief and ethnic minanty Partners

In 2014 we also introduced diversity policy statement for the Partnership Board We have set a goal
for improving the proportion of ethnic minority managers in cur management populaton This goal 1s
to increase the current proportion by 50% over the next five years so that ethnic minonty managers
make up at least 10% of all managers

Ethnicity of senior manager population

2015 2014
White 91 3% 91 6%
Asian or Asian British 18% 20%
Black or Black British 02% 03%
Chinese or other ethnic group 05% 04%
Mixed origin 08% 08%
Not given 54% 4 9%




JOHN LEWIS PLC

Strategic report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 continued

Factors affecting future performance

Rapid technological change 1s influencing the way we live, work and shop As a business that serves
customers using technology, we are in the midst of reshaping our operations This will require
constant agility and will mean some difficult decisions over the coming years

What's the challenge?

How will this affect the
Partnership?

We need to invest
more wisely

Our business needs to continue investing
money This 1s to support growth, to refurbish
and to upgrade existing shops but more
significantly to develop new systems and our
distnbution capabilities Over recent years these
have taken a greater share of our capital
investment as we adopt new technelogy and
invest to reshape our operations and serve new
customer needs, such as online and home
delivery

Our competitors are online
retallers as much as tradiienal
high street names We need to
make some tough decisions
about where we prioritise
investment, including in growth

Deflation and the focus on price and value,
especially in grocery, are creating pressure on
depreciation charges that are associated

In view of our increasing
investment levels and market

We need to margins So too are the different operating ressures. there will be more
become more requirements of an omnichannel business, P ’
) emphasis on efficiency and less
efficient where every item sold online carnes a cost of }
on growth to achieve ‘sufficient
picking, purchasing and delivery You also have rofit
the lgher with greater investment in the supply P
chain and systems
Efficiency comes in many forms In some cases
4 Y Productivity and continuous
it means roles change, some are lost, others are
improvement are at the heart of
created But it also comes in the form of .
an employee-owned business
productmity, where, as a result of personal
We need to purpose Partners can play a wilal
development, job design and technology, a
become more role in growing our profitability
. Partner can contnbute more value than before
roductive rou ersonal contnbutions
duct th h | tnbut

This 1s not about ‘working harder' It 1s important
to our ability to offer worthwhife and satisfying
Jobs and t's also the only sustainable route to
enable Partners’ pay levels {o grow

Productimty can the engine room
to grow our pay and financial
returns through bonus

10




JOHN LEWIS PLC
Strategic report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 continued
Our Partnership aims

Our aims are ambitious

The aims are ambitious They reflect and build on cur strengths, but they also require the Partnership
to do some new and different things They identify how we will compete, what behaviours are required
and how we will judge success

When we achieve them they will represent big steps in three mportant areas We will have
successfully enabled Partners to add more value to our business than employees do in our
competitors, and therefore earn more as a result We will have successfully targeted the most
valuable customers, who shop across our brands, and ganed a greater share of therr spend And,
through improved processes and clearer responsibilities, we'll be funding our growth through
efficiency and better operating margins

Dwisional performance 1s tracked against the Aims to ensure our overall objective to achieve Principle
11s being met

Divisional strategles

Wartrose

Partnership Aim What this means Strategic priorities

Increase advantage of Define and enable the =» Invest in Partner development and progression
Partners worthwhile and satisfying

employment of Partners
= Support productivity

=2 Create Modern Waitrose, build online presence,
broaden convenience offer, develop compelling

, reasons to visit shops
Realise market potential B¢ Britain's feading

omnichannel retaller 2 Investment in product innovation and value
= Deepen customer relationships through
myWaitrose
Generate sustainable = Open appropriate new retail space
returns for the Partnership
= Investn IT and distribution to support growth
Grow efficiently and appropnate retumn for pportg

Partners’ ownership

11




JOHN LEWIS PLC

Strategic report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 continued

John Lewis
Partnership Aim What this means Strategic priorities
Increase advantage of Define and enable the
Partners worthwhile and satisfying 2 Parlners owning success
employment of Partners
Be Britain's lead = Outperform in current markets
Realise market potential e Britain's leading omni
channel retatler = Diversify into new markets
Generate sustainable = Expand physical space
returns for the Partnership
< Build online business
Grow efficiently and appropnate ratum for vl ine bust
Partners’ ownership 2 Grow efficiently to exploit scale

Approved by the Directors and signed on behalf of the Board

L)

Sir Charlie Mayfield

Director, John Lews plc
16 Apnl 2015
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

Directors’ report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 January 2015

Principal activities

John Lews plc 1s Incorporated and registered in England and Wales The principal activity of John
Lewis plc i1s retailing, with the main trading operations being the Waitrose and John Lewis businesses
The Company controls the entities listed in note 54, compnsing the John Lewis department stores,
John Lewis at home stores, johnlewis com, a John Lews haison office in Gurgaon, India, Waitrose
supermarkets, Waitrose convenience stores, waitrose com, business to business contracts in the UK
and abroad and ancillary manufacturing activities

Future developments of John Lewis plc are discussed in the Strategic report

Directors and Company Secretary

The Directors of the Company at the date of this report are shown on page 2 Dunng the year under
review, Helen Werr resigned as a Director with effect from 1 December 2014 and Loraine Woodhouse
was appointed as a Director with effect from 1 December 2014

Margaret Casely-Hayford resigned as Company Secretary and Alan Buchanan was appointed as
Company Secretary with effect from 31 July 2014 Subsequently, Alan Buchanan resigned as
Company Secretary with effect from 31 January 2015 and Keith Hubber was appointed Company
Secretary with effect from 1 February 2015

The Diectors had appointed alternates to represent them In certain circumstances These
arrangements were revoked on 27 January 2015 Accordingly from that date, there are no appointed
alternate directors

Corporate governance

John Lewis plc, as the pnncipal trading subsidiary of John Lewis Partnership ple, falls within the
governance auspices of the Partnership To comply with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules
applicable to John Lews plc, its corporate governance arrangements are provided by the Partnership
Board and its Committees These arrangements are explained in the Governance section on pages
82 to 119 of the Annua! Report and Accounts of John Lewis Partnership plc

The pnncipal nsks and uncertainties and mitigations for those nsks for the John Lews plc group are
explaned on pages 44 to 47 of the Strategic Report These nsks are reviewed and monitored by the
Partnership’s Audit and Risk Committee The work undertaken by the Partnership’s Audit and Risk
Committee during the year to review these nisks are detailed in the Committee’'s Report on pages 104
to 109 of the Annual Report and Accounts of John Lewis Partnership plc

The management functions for preparning consolidated financial statements for John Lewis plc and its
internal audit and nsk management functions are provided by the Partnership The Partnership’s Audit
and Risk Committee 1s responsible for monitoring the financial reporting process, including the
process for preparng consolidated financial statements, and the effectiveness of internal controfs,
internal audit and nsk management systems for John Lewis plc The Committee's activities in these
areas are detalled in the Partnership’s Audit and Risk Committee Report on pages 104 to 109 of the
Annual Report and Accounts of John Lewis Partnership plc

13



JOHN LEWIS PLC

Directors’' report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 continued

Employees

The Consttuton of the Partnership prowvides for the democratic involvement of employees (our
“Partners™) as co-owners of the business Partners are provided with extensive information on all
aspects of business operations and are encouraged to take an active interest in promoting its
commercial success

The aim 1s to ensure that the co-owners are given the information they need to be able to decide
whether the Chairman, the Partnership Board and management are being effective The Partnership’s
democratically elected bodies, including the Partnership Council and other elected councils and
forum, provide regular opportumties at all levels of the business for management to report to Partners
and for Partners to question management Additionally, there 1s an open system of journalism,
including the weekly Gazette, which provides a means of sharng information extensively with all
Partners and contributes to effective accountability

Partners receive an annual Partnership Bonus from the profits of the business This 1s a shared bonus
for shared effort

Employment

All employees can benefit from the Group's training and development policies The Group recruits
people with disabiities to suitable vacancies on ment Where disability occurs during the period of
employment, every effort 1Is made to continue to provide suitable employment with the prowision of
appropnate training

The Group seeks to embrace diversity and this 1s reflected in all we do The Board 1s therefore
committed to providing equal opportunities for all in employment at all levels of the organisation,
regardless of iIndivtdual differences such as gender and ethnic origin

Human nights

The Group recognises its responsibility to respect human nghts, in particular those expressed in the
International Bill of Human Rughts and the principles concerning fundamental nghts set out in the
International Labour Organisation’s Declaration on Fundamental Prninciples and Rights at Work

All own-brand suppliers are required to comply with the Partnership Responsible Sourcing Code of
Practice (“the Code"), as set out in our Terms and Conditions of Purchase The code i1s based on the
Ethical Trading Inihative Base Code and on the conventions of the International Labour Orgamisation
The Group expects its suppliers to have polictes and procedures in place to ensure compliance with
the code and as such potential and existing supplier sites are monitored regularly through
independent ethical audits Where non-compliance i1s found, remedtal action 15 undertaken to mitigate
this The Group also undertakes capacity-building and traiming programmes with its suppliers {o
ensure long term improvements to working conditions in its supply chain

Conflicts of interest

The Partnership Board mantains procedures that allow for the regular review of potential conflicts of
interest All Directors are required to declare pertinent interests and absent themselves from any
discusston that might give rise to a conflict of interest A register of interests 1s maintained by the
General Counsel and Company Secretary

14




JOHN LEWIS PLC
Directors’ report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 continued

At no time durning the year did any Director hold a matenal interest in any contract of significance with

the Partnership or any of its subsidiary undertakings, other than a third party indemnity between each

Director and the Company, as granted by the Company's Articles of Association and service contracts
between each Executive Director and the Company

Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Global GHG emissicns data for the period 26 January 2014 to 31 January 2015

Tonnes of COze

Emissions from

Scope 1 Combustion of fuels & operation of facilities 205,278
Scope 2 Electnecity purchased for own use 316,343
Scope 3 Water supply and treatrnent, business travel by rail or arr,

62,294
waste to landfill
Total 583,915
Intensity measurement

534

Emissions reported above normalised fo per £milfion sales

Methodology

The Partnership has reported on all of the emission sources as required under the Companies Act
2006 (Strategic Report and Directors' Reports) Regulations 2013

The reporting followed the 2013 UK Government environmental reporting guidance {Chapter 2) and
used the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (revised edition), data
gathered to fulfil our requirements under the CRC Energy Efficiency scheme, and, where available,
emission factors from UK Government’'s GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting

2014 and 2015 data has been calculated using Defra-DECC 2014 emissions factors, with the
exception of certain refngerants, and some emissions sources associated with our Leckford farm
which are taken from industnal and academic sources

Excluded from this scope are emissions from sites operated by stores under licence, franchisees
(both overseas and Welcome Break franchises)

The Partnership has commissioned DNV GL agan to undertake independent assurance of
Greenhouse Gas emissions data in the 2015 Annual Report and Accounts and online environmental
reporting DNV GL performed its work using international assurance standards, including the
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) — ‘Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits and Reviews of Histerical Financial Information’ and 1S0Q19011 For a full description of
the work they performed, please see therr assurance statement on www johnlewispartnership co uk
Their opinion 1s Included within the 2015 John Lewis Partnership plc Annual Report and Accounts

Corporate Social Responsibility

We encourage our Partners to actively forge links and become involved in the local communities in
which they live and work We work with orgamisations like Business in the Community (BITC) to
continually improve the impact we have as a business on society
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
Directors’ report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 continued

Health and safety

The Company adopts the John Lewis Partnership plc's arrangements in respect of health and safety
The Partnership 1s committed to going about its business in a way that avoids, so far as 1s reasonably
practicable, causing harm to people or property, and to promoting, through its extensive occupational
health service, the wellbeing of its workforce The Partnership cannot expect to eliminate health and
safety nisk totally from the workplace but our current priority I1s to ensure that management at all levels
know and understand the nsks within their areas of responsibility

Directors’ responsbilities

The statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the Strateqic Report, Directors’ Report and
financial statements 1s set out on page 86

Directors’ interests

Under the constitution of the Partnership all the Directors, as employees of John Lewis plc, are
necessarly interested in the 612,000 Deferred Ordinary Shares in John Lewis Partnership plc which
are held in trust for the benefit of employees of John Lewis plc and of certain other Group companies
No Director has or had a matenal interest in any contract or arrangement to which the Company 1s or
was a party

Capital structure

At 31 January 2015, the Company has in issue 1,457,500 5% First Cumulative Preference Stock of
which 83 3% was held by John Lewis Partnership pic and 750,000 7% Cumulative Preference Stock
of which 75 6% s held by John Lewis Partnership plc and bonds and 6,750,000 ordinary shares of £1
each The nghts attaching to the Cumulative Preference Stock are set out in note 17 of these
accounts

Each ordinary share carnes the nght to one vote at a general meeting of the Company The ordinary
shares are wholly owned by John Lewis Partnership plc

Listing on the London Stock Exchange (LSE)

Both the Partnership and its immediate subsidiary, John Lewis plc, have Standard Listings on the
LSE Many years ago, both companies 1ssued Cumulative Preference Stocks This 1s a form of share
with a night to receive fixed rate of dividend payment per annum, which cumulates If not paid annualiy
It has to be paid before any dvidend to ordinary shareholders The Cumulative Preference Stocks
issued by John Lewis Partnership ple carry no nghts of ownership of the Partnership and nor do they
carry any voting nghts, unless the preference dividend 1s six months 1n arrears or unless a resoclution
1s proposed which directly affects the interest of these shares as a class The Cumulative Preference
Stocks are treated in the balance sheet as a long-term liability of the business and not as equity share
capital

John Lews plc has also 1ssued Bonds which are listed on the LSE
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

Directors’ report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 continued

CREST Settlement

During the year under review the Articles of Association of the Company were amended to facilitate
the mechanics of holding and trading in the Cumulative Preference Stocks (Preference Shares) in
order to comply with the Company's legal obligations under EU Regulation 909/2014 on Central
Securities Depositories (CSD) and additionally to make provision for the use of electronic
communications with Shareholders This means the Preference Shares can be held on an
uncertficated basis and are capable of transfer in de-matenalised form through CREST subject to the
provisions of the CSD Regulation

The Partnership Board believes that adopting the measures necessary to accommodate settiement
and holding of the Preference Shares in de-materalised form may be of assistance in establishing a
matching facility to faciitate hquidity of the Preference Shares in future Should steps be taken to
estabhish such a facility, an anncuncement will be made at that time

Dividends

Bividends on Cumulative Preference Stocks for the year ended 31 January 2015 were £125,000
(2014 £125,000})

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend on the Ordinary shares (2014 nil)

Going concern

After revieming the Group’s operating budgets, business plans, investment plans, financing
arrangements and matenal risks, the Directors consider that the Group has adequate financial
resources to continue 1n operation for the foreseeable future

The Group has, at the date of this report, sufficient financing availlable for its estimated requirements
for the foreseeable future and, accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to adopt
the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements and are not aware of any matenal
uncertainties to the company’s ability to continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from
the date of approval of this report

Political donations

The Group made no political donations

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at 2 15pm on Thursday 4 June 2015 at Longstock House,
Leckford, Stockbridge, Hampshire SO20 6JF

Events after the balance sheet date

Since 31 January 2015, the asset classified as held for sale has been sold for an amount In excess of
carrying value See note 14
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
Directors’ report for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 continued

Disclosure of information to auditors
Each of the persons who are Directors at the date of approval of this report confirms that

1 So far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditors
are unaware, and

2 The Director has taken all the steps that hefshe ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish the Group's auditors are
aware of that information

Pyb the Diregtors and signed on behalf of the Board

Keith Hubber
Company Secretary
16 Apnl 2015
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 January 2015

2015 2014
Nofes £m £m
2,4 Gross sales 10,942 6 10,171 5
4 Revenue 9,701 0 9,027 8
Cost of sales (6,426 9) (6,008 9)
Gross profit 3,2741 30189
Other operating income 861 74 2
5 Operating expenses before exceptional item {2,920 4) (2,624 6)
4 Operating profit before exceptional item 4398 468 5§
3 Exceptional item 79 (47 3)
4 Operating profit 4477 421 2
6 Finance costs {101 0) (95 6)
6 Finance income 28 30
Profit before Partnership Bonus and tax 3495 3286
Partnership Bonus (156 2) (202 5)
Profit before tax 1933 126 1
Taxation {50 2) (24 4)
Profit for the year 1431 1017
4 Profit before Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional item 3416 3759
* 53 week year
Consolidated statement of comprehensive expense
for the year ended 31 January 2015
2015* 2014
Notes £m £m
Profit for the year 1431 1017
Other comprehensive income/{expense)
Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
23 Remeasurement of defined benefit pension schemes {523 5) (245 2)
8 Movement in deferred tax on pension schemes 383 59
8 Movement in current tax on pension schemes 708 274
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Net gain/{loss) on cash flow hedges 88 97)
8 Movement in deferred tax on cash flow hedges {0 6) —
Other comprehensive expense for the year {406 2) (221 6)
Total comprehensive expense for the year (263 1) (119 9)

* 53 week year
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 January 2015

2015 2014
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
10 Intangible assets 3355 266 9
11 Property, plant and equipment 4,160 1 3,987 2
13 Trade and other recevables 627 613
8 Deferred tax asset 123 8 691
46821 4,384 5
Current assets
12 Inventories 5807 554 0
13 Trade and other recervables 2083 2257
Current tax receivable 192 -
22 Denvative financial instruments 96 07
14 Assets held for sale 157 -
15 Cash and cash equivalents 3398 3588
1,173 3 1,1393
Total assets 5,855 4 55238
Current liabilities
17 Bormrowings and overdrafts (61 4) {75 6)
18 Trade and other payables (1,620 8) (1,599 3)
Current tax payable - ©e1n
19 Finance lease kabilities {(31) (33)
20 Provisions (110 1) (120 9)
22 Derivative financial instruments {6 6) 59)
{1,802 0) {1,805 1)
Non-current liabilities
17 Borrowings (923 7) (628 7}
18 Trade and other payables (175 9) (135 5)
19 Finance lease labilities (28 3) (32 4)
20 Provisions {158 0) (137 2)
23 Retirement benefit obligations (1,249 3) {1,003 4)
(2,535 2) (1,937 2)
Total liabilities (4,337 2) (3,742 3)
Net assets 1,518 2 17815
Equity
25 Share capital 67 67
Share premium 03 c3
Other reserves s (4 2)
Retained eamings 1,507 4 1,776 7
Total equity 15182 17815

The financial statements on pages 19 to 63 were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 April 2015
and signed on its behalf by

L CQ .
Sir Charlie Mayfield and Loraine Woodhouse

Directors, John Lewis plc
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 January 2015

Share Share Capital Hedging Foreign Retained Total
capital premium  reserve reserve currency earnings Equity
translation
reserve

Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 26 January 2013 67 03 14 39 - 18889 1,801 2
Profit for the year - - - - - 1017 1017
Remeasurement of defined

23 benefit pension scheme - - - - - (245 2) {245 2)
Tax on above item

8 recognised in equity - - - - - 333 333
Farr value losses on cash
flow hedges - - - {6 8) - - (6 6)
— transfers to inventones - - - 31 - - 31)
Gain on currency translabions - - - - 02 - 0z
Balance at 25 January 2014 67 03 14 (58) 02 17787 41,7815
Profit for the year - - - - - 1431 1431
Remeasurement of defined

23 benefit pension scheme - - - - - (523 5) (623 5)
Fair value gains on cash flow
hedges - - - 04 - - 04
— transfers to inventornes - - - 91 - - 91
- transfers to property, plant
and equipment - - - 07) - - 7
Tax on above items

8 recognised In equity - - - {G8B) - 1091 1085
Gain on currengy translaticns - - - - (02) - (02)
Balance at 31 January
2015* 67 03 14 24 - 1,507 4 1,518 2

53 week year

Retained earnings compnse £1,114 8m (2014 £1,374 2m) of distnbutable and £392 2m (2014

£404 5m) of non-distributable reserves, ansing on the revaluation of freehald and long leasehcld

properties prior to 31 January 2004
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 January 2015

2015* 2014
Notes £m £m
26 Cash generated from operations 8915 7838
Net taxation paid {16 1) (32 1)
Partnership Bonus paid (202 8) (210 6)
23 Additienal contnibution to the Pension Schermne (294 1) (850)
Finance costs paid (30) {2 6)
Net cash generated from operating activities 3755 453 5
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (526 2) (387 1)
Purchase of intangible assets (144 7) (107 9)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 447 28
Finance income received 05 15
Net cash used In Investing activities (625 7) (490 6)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs paid in respect of bonds (44 0) (54 5)
Payment of capital element of finance leases 44) (31)
Paymenits to preference shareholders (0 1) (01)
Cash inflow from borrowings 293 8 -
Cash outflow on borrowings - (100 0}
Net cash generated from/{used in) financing activities 2453 (157 7}
Decrease in net cash and cash equivalents 49) (194 8)
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2833 4781
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 2784 2833
15 Net cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash at bank and in hand 997 177
Short-term investments 240 1 2412
Bank overdrafts {61 4) {756)
278 4 2833

- 53 week year
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Accounting policies

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the histonical cost convention, with the exception of
certain land and buildings which are included at their deemed cost amounts and financial assets and
financial liabilittes (iIncluding derivative instruments} valued at fair value through profit or loss, and in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European
Union and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applhicable to companies reporting under IFRS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities at the date of the
consoldated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
year Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or
actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates The cnitical accounting estimates
and judgements made by management are disclosed and discussed in section 1 6

The financial period 1s the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 {prnicr period 52 weeks ended 25
January 2014)

Going concern

The Directors, after reviewing the Group’s operating budgets, investments plans and financing
arrangements, consider that the Company and Group have, at the date of this report, sufficient
financing avallable for the estimated requirements for the foreseeable future Accordingly, the
Directors are satisfied that it 1s appropnate to adept the going concern basis in preparing the Annual
Report and Accounts

1.2 Basis of consolidation

The consclidated Group financial statements incorporate the results for the Company and all #s
subsidiary undertakings made up to the year end date

1 3 Subsidiaries

Subsidiary undertakings are all entities over which the Group has control Control exists when the
Group has the power to direct the activities of an entity so as to affect the return on investment

All intercompany balances, transactions and unrealised gains are ehminated upon consolidation

1 4 Amendments to accounting standards

The following policies have been consistently applied to ail the years presented unless otherwise
stated

The following standards, amendments and interpretations were adopted by the Group for the year
ended 31 January 2015 and have not had a significant impact on the Group's prefit for the year,
equity or disclosures

» Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 27 ‘Investment Entities’,

*  Amendments to IAS 32 ‘Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’,

+ Amendments to |AS 36 ‘Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets',

+ Amendments to |AS 39 ‘Novation of Denvatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting’,

e IFRIC 21 ‘Levies’
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies (continued)

The following are new accounting standards and amendments to existing standards that may have
been published and applicable for the Group's accounting penods beginning on 1 February 2015,
which the Group has not adopted early

+  Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Defined Benefit Plans Employee contributions’
s Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle — vanous standards
»  Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle — vanous standards

These are not expected to have a material impact on profit or equity for future years, but may affect
disclosures

The Group 1s currently assessing the impact of the following standards, which have been 1ssued but
not yet been endorsed by the EU

+ |FRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (applicable for the year ending 27 January
2018)
« |FRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (applicable for the year ending 26 January 2019)

1 5 Significant accounting policies

Revenue

Sales of goods and services are recognised as revenue when the goods have been delivered or the
services rendered Revenue in respect of ‘sale or return sales’ which represents concession iIncome Is
stated at the value of the margqin that the Group receives cn the transaction Revenue I1s also net of
Partner discounts and VAT Revenue 1s recognised in respect of sales under bil and holg
arrangements when the goods are segregated for the customer’s benefit at therr request, and made
available for delivery

Sales of gift vouchers and gift cards are treated as labilities, and revenue 1s recognised when the gift
vouchers or cards are redeemed against a later transaction Certain companies within the Group sell
products with a nght of return, and expenence 1s used to estmate and provide for the value of such
returns at the time of sale

The business Is predominantly carned out in the United Kingdom and gross sales and revenue denve
almost entirely from that source

Inventory valuation

Inventory Is stated at the lower of cost, which 1s computed on the basis of average unit cost, and net
realisable value Inventory excludes merchandise purchased by the Group on a sale or return basis,
where the Group does not have the nsks and rewards of ownership Slow moving and obsolete
inventory 1s assessed for imparment at each reporting period based on past experience and
appropriate provision made

Employee benefits

The Group's principal retirement benefit scheme s a defined benefit pension fund with assets held
separately from the Group The cost of providing benefits under the scheme 1s determined using the
projected umit credit actuanal valuation method, which measures the lability based on service
completed and allowing for projected future salary increases
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies (continued)

The current service cost, which is the increase Iin the present value of the retirement benefit obligation
resulting from employee service In the current year, and gains and losses on settlements and
curtallments, which anse on transactions that eiminate part or all of the benefits provided or when
there are amendments to terms such that a significant element of future service will no longer qualify
for benefits or will qualify only for reduced benefits, are included within operating profit in the
consoldated income statement Past service costs are recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement

Remeasurements of defined pension schemes due to expenence adjusiments and changes In
actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the penod
in which they arise

There are a number of unfunded pension lhiabiities, where the actuanally assessed costs of providing
the benefit are charged to the consclidated income statement There are no assets supporting these
arrangements

The Group also operates a defined contribution scheme Contributions are charged in the income
statement as they fall due The Group has no further obligations once the contributions have been
made

The Group has a scheme to provide up to six months paid leave after 25 years’ service {long leave)
The cost of providing the benefits under the scheme 1s determined actuanally The current service
cost 15 included within operating profit in the consolidated income statement The financing elements
of long leave are included in finance costs In the consolidated income statement

Property, plant and equipment
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes the purchase pnce and directly attnbutable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition for iis intended use

The Group's freehold and long leasehold properties were last vajued by the Directors, after
consultation with CB Richard Ellis, Chartered Surveyors, at 31 January 2004, at far value These
values have been incorporated as deemed cost, subject to the requirement to test for mpairment in
accordance with IAS 36 The Group decided not to adopt a policy of revaluatien since 31 January
2004

Other assets are held at cost

Depreciation

No depreciation 1s charged on freehold land and assets in the course of construction Depreciation 1s
calculated for all other assets to write off the cost or valuation, less residual value, on a straight line
basis over their expected useful kfe, at the following rates

+ Freehold and long leasehold bulldings — 2% to 4%,

« Other teaseholds — over the shorter of the useful economic hife and the remaining penod of the
lease,

s Building fixtures — 2 5% to 10%,
 Fixtures and fittings (including vehicles and information technology equipment) — 10% to 33%
Property residual values are assessed as the price in current terms that a property would be expected

to realise, if the buildings were at the end of their useful economic life The assets’ residual values and
useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropnate at least at each balance sheet date
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies {(continued)

Leased assets

Assets used by the Group which have been funded through finance leases on terms that transfer to
the Group substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are capitalised at the inception of the
lease at the fair value of the teased asset or, If lower, at the present value of the munimum lease
payments Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
hability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaming balance of the habiity The
interest element of finance lease rentals 1s charged to the income statement Capitalised leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful Iife of the asset or the lease term

Leases where the Group does not retain substantizlly all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases Operating lease rental payments, other than contingent
rentals, are recognised as an expense In the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the lease
term Conbngent rentals are recognised as an expense In the income statement when incurred

Lease premia and inducements are recogrised in current and non-current assets or habilities as
appropriate, and amortised or released on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Sub-lease income 1s recognised as other operating income on a straight-line basis over the sub-lease
term, less allowances for situations where recovery 1s doubtful

Segmental reporting

The Group's reporting segments are determined based on business activities for which operating
results are reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (‘CODM") The Group's CODM s the
Partnership Board and the reporting segments reflect the management structure of the Group The
Group’s reporting segments are John Lewis, Waitrose and Partnership Services and Group

Supplier income

The price that the Partnership pays supplers for goods 15 determined through negotiations with
suppliers regarding both the st price and a vanety of rebates and discounts The principal categones
of rebate Income are in the form of volume and marketing rebates Supphler income 1s broadly spht
evenly between the two categories as follows

+ Volume rebates Volume rebates are earned based on sales or purchase tnggers set over
specific periods, such as the number of units sold to customers or purchased from the
supplher Volume rebates are recognised over the period set out in the supplier agreement

e Marketing rebates Marketing rebates include promotions, mark downs or marketing support
provided by suppliers Marketing rebates are agreed with suppliers for specific penods and
products

Rebate income 1s recognised when the Partnership has contractual entitiement to the income, it can
be estimated reliably and it 1s probable that it will be received Rebate income recognised 1s recorded
against cost of sales and inventory, which 1s adjusted to reflect the lower purchase cost for the goods
on which a rebate has been earned Depending on the agreement with suppliers, rebates invoiced are
either received in cash from the supplier or netted off against payments made to suppliers

For promotions which are confirmed after the balance sheet date, the Partnership 1s sometimes
required to estmate the amounts due from suppliers at the year end Estimates of supplier income are
accrued within prepayments and accrued income, and are based on a review of the supplier
agreements in place and of relevant sales and purchase data
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies (continued)

The majority of rebates are confirmed before the year end, therefore the level of estimate and
Jjudgement required in determining the year end recevable 1s Iimited

Taxation

The charge for corporation tax 1s based on the results for the year adjusted for items which are not
taxed or are disallowed It 1s calculated using tax rates n legislation that has been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred income

Deferred income tax 1s accounted for using the balance sheet hability method in respect of temporary
differences arising from differences between the tax bases of assets and liablities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements Deferred tax ansing from the inithal recognition of an asset or
habiity in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the ttime of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, 1s not recognised In principle, deferred tax liabilities are
recogrised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that 1t 1s probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utihsed

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the pericd when the asset I1s
realised or the liability 1s settled Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the income statement, except
when 1t relates to items credited or charged to other comprehensive expense, in which case the
deferred tax 1s also dealt with in other comprehensive expense

Intangible assets

Intangible assets, compnsing both purchased and internally developed computer software, are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisaton and impairments The cost of internally developed software,
including all directly attributable costs necessary to create, produce and prepare the software for use,
1s capitalised where the development meets the critena for capitalisation required by IAS 38 Internally
developed software assets that are not yet in use are reviewed at each reporting date to ensure that
the development still meets the critena for capitalisation, and 1s not expected to become impaired or
abortive Once avallable for use, the purchased or internally developed software 1s amortised on a
straight line basis over its useful economic life, which is deemed to be between 3 and 10 years

Borrowings

Borrowings are inthially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs and subsequently measured at
amortised cost Where there 1s an effective related fair value hedge, the movement in the fair value
attnbutable to the hedged risk 1s separately disclosed

Arrangement costs for bonds and loan facilities in respect of debt are capitalised and amortised over
the Iife of the debt at a constant rate Finance costs are charged to the iIncome statement, based on
the effective interest rate of the associated borrowings

Financial instruments

The Group uses dernvative financtal instruments to manage its exposure to fluctuations in financial
markets, including foreign exchange rates and interest rates Derivative financial instruments used by
the Group include forward currency contracts Hedge accounting has been adopted for dervative
financial instruments where possible Such dernvative financial instruments are measured at fair value
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies (continued)

The farr value of a denvative financial iInstrument represents the difference between the value of the
outstanding contracts at therr contracted rates and a valuation calculated using the forward rates of
exchange and interest rates prevailing at the balance sheet date

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the relationship between the item being hedged and the
hedging instrument 1s documented in advance of entering into the hedge, and assessed to show that
the hedge will be highly effectve on an ongoing basis This effectiveness testing 1s also then
performed at each penod end {o ensure that the hedge remains highly effective

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging mstrument matures, 1s terminated or exercised,
the designation i1s revoked or it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting For derivatives that do not
qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or losses arising from changes in far value are taken directly
to the income statement

A cash flow hedge 1s a hedge of the exposure to varability of cash flows that are either attnbutable to
a particular nsk associated with a recognised asset or lability, or a highly probable forecast
transaction The effective portion of changes in the intnnsic farr value of derwvatives that are
designated and qualfy as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity All other changes in fair value
are recognised immediately in the income statement within other gains or losses Amounts
accumulated m equity are recycled to the income statement in the periods when the hedged item
affects profit or loss Derwvative financial instruments qualfying for cash flow hedge accounting are
principally forward currency contracts

The table below sets out the Group’s accounting classification of each class of its financial assets and
habihties

Note Classification Measurement
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15 Loans and recevables Amortised cost
Trade receivables 13 Loans and receivables Amortised cost
Other receivables 13 Loans and receivables Amortised cost
Financial liabitres
Finance leases 19 Financial hiabilities Amortised cost
Borrowings and overdrafts 17 Financial iabiities Amortised cost
Trade payables 18 Financial liatilites Amortised cost
Other payables 18 Financial habilities Amortised cost
Accruals 18 Financial liabilites Amortised cost
Partnership Bonus i8 Financial labilities Amortsed cost
Denvative financial instruments 22 Financial assets or habilihies at far Fair value”

value through profit or loss*

* Cash flow hedges designated as bemng in a hedged relationship upon imihal recognition are measured at far value with the
effective portion of any changes 1n the intnnsic value recogrsed in equity

Impairment

Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for imparrment whenever events
or circumstances Indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable Imparment testing 1s on
cash generating units which are branches, being the lowest level of separately identifiable cash flows
An impairment loss ts recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies (continued)

recoverable amount, the latter being the higher of the asset’'s fair value less costs to dispose and
value In use Value in use calculations are performed using cash flow projections, discounted at a pre-
tax rate which reflects the asset specific risks and the time value of money

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has an obligation in respect of a past event, it 1s more
hkely than not that payment (or a non-cash settlement) will be required to settle the obhigation and
where the amount can be reliably estimated Prowvisions are discounted when the time value of money
Is considered material

Partnership Bonus

The Partnership Bonus 1s announced and paid to Partners each March, it 1s determined in relation to
the performance for the previous financial year No hability 1s recorded for Partnershup Bonus at the
half year as the majonty of the Group's profit and cash flows are earned in the second half year
Consequently, it 1s not possible to make a reliable estimate of the hability until the annual profit 1s
known

A hability for this Partnership Bonus 1s included in the year end accounts, with the amount confirmed
by the Partnership Board shortly after the year end

It 15 recorded in the year it relates to rather than the year it was declared because there 1s a
constructive obligation to pay a Partnership Bonus and 1t can be reliably estimated, once the results
for the year are known and pnior {o the sign off of the Group's financial statements

Offsetting

Balance sheet netting only occurs to the extent that there 1s the legal ability and intention to settle net
As such, bank overdrafts are presented in current habilities to the extent that there 15 no intention to
offset with any cash balances

Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setilement of such transactions
and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilittes denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised In the Income statement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive iIncome as qualifying cash flow hedges On translation of assets and habilities held at
branches in foreign currencies, movements go through the foreign currency translation reserve

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and tnh hand and short-term
deposits with onginal matunities of less than 90 days In the consolidated cash flow statement, net
cash and cash equivalents compnse cash and cash equiwvalents, as defined above, net of bank
overdrafts
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1 Accounting policies (continued})

Trade receivables

Trade recewvables are intially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
less allowances for stuations where recovery I1s doubtful Such allowances are based on an individual
assessment of each receivable

Trade payables
Trade payables are initially recognised at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost

1 6 Cnitical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal experience and cther
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances

The preparation of the financial statements reguires management to make estimates and
assumptions concerning the future The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, be lkely to
differ from the related actual results The estimates and assumptions that have a significant rnisk of
causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and lhabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below

i. Retirement benefits

Pension accounting requires cerfain assumptions to be made in order to value our obligations and to
determine the charges to be made to the iIncome statement These figures are particularly sensitive to
assumptions for discount rates, mortalty and inflation rates Details of assumptions are given m note
23

ii Provisions and liabilities

Provisions and liabilities recognised at the balance sheet date are detalled in notes 18 and 20 and
include amounts for long leave, unredeemed gift vouchers and gift cards, service guarantee costs,
customer refunds, insurance clams, reorgamisation costs, accrued holiday pay and property related
costs

Although provisions and labilities are reviewed on a regular basis and adjusted to reflect
management's best current estmates the judgemental nature of these items means that future
amounts settled may be different from those provided

ui. Impairment

The Group Is required to test whether assets in use in operations have suffered any imparrment The
recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been determined based on the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use The calculation of value in use requires the estimation of future
cash flows expected to anse frcm the contnuing operation of the cash generating unit and the
selecton of a sutable discount rate in order to calculate the present value Given the degree of
subjectivity involved, actual outcomes could vary significantly from these estmates Details of
assumptions are given in note 11
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2 Non-GAAP measures

2.1 Gross sales
Gross sales represents the amounts receivable by the Group for goods and services supplied to

customers, net of discounts but including sale or return sales and VAT This measure shows the
underlying sales trend

2 2 Exceptional items
ltems which are both matenal and non-recurnng are presented as excephional items within therr

relevant consolidated income statement category The separate reporting of exceptional items helps
provide an indication of the Group's underlying business performance

2.3 Profit before Partnership Bonus and Tax

Profit before Partnership Bonus and Tax 1s presented as a separate financial statement caption within
the consolidated income statement This measure provides further information on the Group's
underlying profitability

2.4 Net debt

Net debt incorporates the Group’s consolidated borrowings, bank overdrafts, fair value of derivative
financial instruments and obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents and
unamortised bond transaction costs This measure indicates the overall debt position

3 Exceptional item

In the prior year, the Group made an announcement regarding holiday pay payments Following a
review of the Group's holiday pay policy, it became clear that Partners who receive certain additions
to pay, such as premums for working on Sunday or bank holidays, had not been paid correctly under
the Working Time Regulations legislation The Partnership Board therefore decided to make one-off
additional payments to those affected

An exceptional operating expense was recorded in the year to 25 January 2014 totaling £47 3m This
reflected estimated costs of £39 3m for payments to Partners and associated expenses for hohday
pay dating back to 2006 which had not been calculated correctly Future pension habilittes were also
increased by £8 Om as a result

In the year ending 31 January 2015, exceptional operating income has been recognised of £7 9m
This comprises a release of £3 4m from the pension hiability and £4 &m released from other provisions
which reflects that the estimated costs for correcting the underlying systems for holiday pay were
lower than onginaily expected

A tax charge of £1 7m was recognised on the exceptional item (2014 credit of £10 9m)
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4 Segmental reporting

The Group has three reporting segments which are Wartrose, John Lewis and Partnership Services
and Group Partnership Services and Group includes operating costs for our Group offices,
Partnership Services, transformation programmes and certain pension operating costs The operating
profit of each reporting segment 1s reported after charging relevant Partnership Services and Group
costs based on the business segments’ usage of these facilites and services, and before the

exceptional item

Waitrose  John Lewis Partnership Total
Services
and Group

2015 £m £m £m £m
Gross sales 6,508 8 44337 - 10,942 6
Adjustment for sale or retum sales - {173 1) - {173 1)
Value added tax (373 6) (694 8) - {1,068 5)
Revenue 6,1353 3,5657 - 9,701 0
Operating profit before exceptional item and profit on
sale of property 2269 2477 (49 0} 4256
Profit on sale of property 105 28 08 142
Operating profit befere exceptional item 237 4 2505 (48 1) 439 8
Exceptional item - - 79 79
Operating profit 237 4 2505 (40 2) 447 7
Finance costs - - (101 0) (101 0)
Finance income - - 28 28
Partnership Bonus - - (156 2) {156 2)
Profit before tax 237 4 2505 (294 6) 1933
Taxation - - {50 2) (50 2)
Profit for the year 237 4 2505 {344 8) 1431
Reconciliahion of Profit before Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional temn to Profit before tax
Profit before Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional
Item 237 4 2505 {146 3) 3416
Partnership Bonus - - (156 2) (156 2)
Exceptional item - - 79 79
Profit before tax 237 4 2505 {294 6) 1933
Segment assets 2,947 7 2,0027 9050 58554
Saegment liabilities (675 1) (771 0} (2,891 1) (4,337 2)
Net assets 2,272 6 11,2317 (1,986 1) 1,518 2
Other segment items
- Depreciation (172 3} {93 5) (159 (281 7)
- Amortisation (33 2) (26 0) {16 9) {76 1)
- Capital expenditure — property, plant and equipment 3346 1518 276 514 1
- Capntal expenditure - intangible assets 385 809 243 144 7
- Movement in provisions — increase/(decrease) 64 30 06 100
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4 Segmental reporting (continued)

Waitrose John Lewis Partnership Total
Services and
Group

2014 £m £m £m £m
Gross sales 6,111 9 4,059 86 - 10,171 5
Adjustment for sale or retum sales - (148 9) - (148 9)
Value added tax (358 2) (636 6) - (994 8)
Revenue 57537 3,274 1 - 9,027 8
Operating profit before exceptional item and profit on
sale of property 3101 226 1 (67 7) 468 5
Profit on sale of property - - - _
Operating profit before exceptional item 3101 2261 (67 7) 468 5
Exceptional item - — {47 3} (47 3}
Operating profit 3101 2261 (115 0) 424 2
Finance costs - - (95 6) {95 6)
Finance ncome - - 30 30
Parthership Bonus - - {202 5) (202 5)
Profit before tax 3101 226 1 {410 1) 1261
Taxation - - (24 4) (24 4)
Profit for the year 3101 226 1 (434 5) 17
Reconciliation of Profit before Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional item to Profit before tax
Profit before Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional
item 3101 2261 {160 3} 3759
Partnership Bonus - - (202 5) (202 5)
Exceptional item - - (47 3) (47 3)
Profit before tax 3101 2261 {410 1) 126 1
Segment assets 2,844 4 1,868 9 8105 55238
Segment habilities (610 2) (730 1) (2,402 0) (3,742 3}
Net assets 2,234 2 1,138 8 (1,591 5) 1,7815
Other segment items
— Depreciation (141 6) (95 7) (17 3) (254 6)
- Amortisation {24 3) (19 2) (11 0) (54 5)
— Capital expenditure — property, plant and equipment (283 8) (126 3) (15 1) (425 2)
— Capital expenditure — intangible assets (32 8) {48 5) (26 6) (107 9)
— Movement in provisions — increase/{decrease) (6 5) 14 4 40 119
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5 Operating expenses before exceptional item

2015 2014
£m £m
Branch operating expenses {2,228 0) (2,013 4)
Administrative expenses (692 4) {611 2)
{2,920 4) (2,624 6)
6 Net finance costs
2015 2014
£m £m
Finance costs
Interest payable on
Bank loans and overdrafts (19) (11)
Qther loans repayable within five years (26 6) (13 4)
Other loans repayable in more than five years {207) (413)
Finance lease interest payable (14) (186)
Amortisation of 1ssue costs of bonds and lean facilities (13) (10)
Preference dividends ©1) {0 1)
Finance costs in respect of borrowings (52 0) (58 5)
Fair value measurements and other {15) -
Net finance costs ansing on defined benefit and other employee benefit schemes (47 5) (37 1)
Total finance costs {101 0) (95 6)
Finance income
Finance income In respect of cash and short-term investments 06 16
Fair value measurements and other 22 14
Total finance income 28 30
Net finance costs {98 2) (92 6)
2015 2014
£m £m
Total finance cests in respect of borrowings (520) (58 5)
Total finance Income 1n respect of cash and short-term investments 06 16
Net finance costs in respect of borrowings and short-term investments (514) {56 9)
Fair value measurements and other 07 14
Net finance costs ansing on defined benefit retirement schemes (37 6) (353)
Net finance costs ansing on other employee benefit schemes (99) (18)
Net finance costs (98 2) (92 6)
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7 Profit before tax

2015 2014
£m £m
Staff costs (note 9) (1,814 8) (1,753 9)
Depreciation — owned assets {278 8) (251 9)
Depreciation — assets held under finance leases (2 9) 27)
Amortisation of intangible assets (76 1) (54 5)
Profit/(loss) on sale of property 142 (18)
(Loss)/profit on disposal of other plant and equipment and intangible assets {19) 02
Inventory — cost of iInventory recognised as an expense {6,426 9) (6,008 9)
Reorganisation costs (69) (14 7)
Operating lease rentals
- land and buildings {158 2) {139 B)
— plant and machinery (0 4) (0 3)
Sub lease income
— land and buildings 81 77

Contingency rents expensed during the year were £3 1m (2014 £2 7m) Contingency rents are

determined based on store revenues

Total auditors’ remuneration 1s included within administrative expenses, and 1s payable to our

auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, as analysed below

2015 2014
£m £m
Audit and audit-related services
— Audit of the parent company and consolidated financial statements (0 3) (03)
— Audit of the Company’s subsidiares (0 5) (05)
(08) ©8
Non-audit services
— Other assurance services (0 1) (0 2)
— Other non-audit services (0 2) -
(03) (0 2)
Total fees 11) (10)

In addition tc the above, the Group’s auditors also acted as auditors to the Group’s pension scheme
The aggregate fee for audit services to the pension scheme dunng the year was £51,300 (2014

£49,500)
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8 Taxation

8 1 Analysis of tax charge for the year

2015 2014

Analysis of tax charge £m £m
Corporation tax — current year (70 0) (611}
Corporation tax — adjustment in respect of pnor years 28 (09}
Total current tax charge (67 2) (62 0}
Deferred tax — cumrent year 171 350
Deferred tax — adjustment in respect of pnor years (01) 26
(50 2) (24 4)

2015 2014

Tax credited to other comprehensive income £m £m
Movement in current tax on pensicn schemes 708 274
Movement in deferred tax on pension schemes 383 59
Movement in deferred tax on cash flow hedges {0§) -
108 5 333

8 2 Factors affecting tax charge in the year

The tax charge for the year s higher (2014 lower) than the standard corporation tax rate of 21 33%
(2014 23 17%) The differences are explained below

2015 2014
£m £m
Profit before tax 1933 1261
Profit before tax multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 21 33% (2014
23 17%) (412) (292)
Effects of
Changes n tax rate {(11) 146
Adjustment to current tax in respect of pnor years 28 09
Adjustment to deferred tax in respect of prior years (0 1) 26
Depreciation on assets not qualifying for tax relief (139) {12 5)
Difference between accounting and tax base for land and buildings 15 14
Differences in overseas tax rates 20 22
Sundry disallowables (2 2) (2 6)
Other permanent differences on sale of property 20 -
Total tax charge (50 2) (24 4)
Effective tax rate (%) 260 193

8.3 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the habiity method using a tax rate of
21% (2014 21%) for deferred tax assets or habiities expected to reverse before Apnl 2015 and 20%
for those assets or llabiities expected to reverse after April 2015 (2014 20%)
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8 Taxation (continued)
The movement on the deferred tax account 1s shown below

2015 2014

£m £m

Opening asset 691 256
Credited to income statement 170 376
Credited to other comprehensive income 377 58
Closing asset 123 8 891

The movements in deferred tax assets and labilities during the year (prior to the offsetting of balances
within the same junsdiction, as permitted by 1AS 12) are shown below

Deferred tax assets and labilites are only offset where there 1s a legally enforceable night of offset
and there Is an intention to settle the balances net

Accelerated Revaluation Rollover Other Total
tax of land and gains
depreciation buildings
Deferred tax liabilities £m £m £m £m £m
At 26 January 2013 {147 2) “n (19 9) (2 2) {174 0)
Credited to income statement 21¢ 09 27 22 277
At 25 January 2014 {125 3) {38) (17 2) - {146 3)
Credited to iIncome statement 29 10 10 - 49
At 31 January 2015 (122 4) 28) {16 2) - {141 4)
Capital gains Pensions Other Total
tax on land and provisions
and buildings
Deferred tax assets £m £m £m £m
Al 26 January 2013 73 1923 - 19986
Credited to iIncome statement (0 1) 100 - 99
Credited to other comprehensive income - 59 - 59
Al 25 January 2014 72 2082 - 2154
Credited/(charged) to income statement (0 4) 111 14 121
Credited/(charged) to other comprehensive
income - 383 (0 6} 377
At 31 January 2015 68 257 6 08 2652

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carned forward to the extent that the realsation of
the related tax benefit through future profits 1s probable There were no unrecogrised deferred tax
assets in respect of losses for the year ended 31 January 2015 (2014 £nil}

The deferred fax balance associated with the pension deficit has been adjusted to reflect the current
tax benefit obtained in the financial year ended 30 January 2010 following the contribution of the
Imited partnership interest in JLP Scottish Limited Partnership to the pension scheme (see note 23)
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8 Taxation (continued)

All of the deferred tax assets were available for offset against deferred tax habilities and hence the net
deferred tax asset at 31 January 2015 was £123 8m (2014 £69 1m asset) The net deferred tax asset
15 recaverable after more than one year

8 4 Factors affecting tax charges in current and future years

The Finance Act 2013 reduced the man rate of corporation tax from 23% to 21% from 1 Apnl 2014
Further reductions to reduce the main rate of corporation tax to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015 have also been
enacted

The effect of the 3% rate change in the prior year was to decrease the deferred tax asset by £6 5m
with a £21 1m charge being taken to other comprehensive income and a £14 6m tax credit to the
income statement

9 Partners

9 1 Partner numbers
During the year the average number of Partners in the Group was as follows

2015 2014
John Lews 29,900 29,800
Waitrose 60,300 55,000
Partnership Services and Group 1,900 1,800
92,100 86,600
9.2 Partner benefits
Employment and related costs were as follows
2015 2014
£m £m
Staff costs
Wages and salanes (1,359 5) (1,271 1)
Social secunty costs {102 2) {97 1)
Partnership Bonus {139 0) (180 2)
Employers' national insurance on Partnership Bonus (17 2) (22 3)
Other pension costs {note 23) (191 1) (175 7)
Long leave cost (5 8} (7 5}
Total before Partner discounts (1,814 8} (1,753 9)
Partner discounts {excluded from revenue) {72 3) {63 3)
{1,887 1) (1,817 2)
Included above are the following amounts in respect of key management compensation
Salanes and short-term benefits {152) (14 1}
Post-employment benefits* (59 (4 8}
Compensation for loss of office (10} -
(21 2) (189

*

Includes pension supplements in heu of future pension accrual

38




JOHN LEWIS PLC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

9 Partners (continued}

Key management include the Directors of the Partnership and the Company, members of the
Dwvisional Management Boards and other officers of the Company Key management compensation
includes salanes, national insurance costs, pension costs and the cost of other employment benefits,
such as company cars, private medical insurance and termunation payments where applicable

Key management participate in the Group's long leave scheme, which 1s open to all Partners and
provides up to six months' paid leave after 25 years' service There 1s no proportional entitlement for
shorter periods of service It 1s not practical to allocate the cost of accruing entitlement to this benefit
to individuals, and so no allowance has been made for this benefit in the amounts disclosed

9.3 Directors’ emoluments

An Executive Director with an external appointment may not retan any eamings from such
appointment unless 1t dates from before he or she joined the Group

Highest paid director

The total emoluments for the year ended 31 January 2015 and 25 January 2014 of the Chairman,
who was also the highest paid Director, were £1,529,000 (2014 £1,520,000), compnsing pay of
£941,000 (2014 £904,000), Partnership Bonus of £104,000 (2014 £136,000), pension supplement in
heu of further defined pension accrual of £470,000 (2014 £466,000) and benefits with a cash value of
£14,000 (2014 £14,000)

Aggregate emoluments

2015 2014
£m £m
Aggregate emoluments 62 ©1)

Pension arrangements

All Directors, except one, have ceased to accrue further pension benefits in the Partnership's defined
benefit pension scheme Therr accrued pensions increase in ine with either price inflation or future
pay Increases, depending on their indmdual arrangements Where there are any accrued defined
benefit pensions remaining on an unfunded basis, the Partnership has made provision for the
associated hability

One Executive Director joined the John Lewis plc Beard in 2014 and remains in the watting period for
joining the Partnership’s pension scheme The Executive Director 1s a member of the defined
contribution scheme and receives a pension cash supplement

The Charrman's aggregate defined benefit pension entitiement from the age of 60 accrued at the end
of the year was £255,000 per annum (2014 £245,000 per annum) There was no increase in the
accrued income entittement above the consumer price inflation dunng the year

Contracts of employment for the Directors provide for a notice period of between six months and one
year No contract contains a prowvision regarding early termination compensation
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10 Intangible assets

Computer software

Purchased Internally Work in Total
developed progress
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 26 January 2013 780 1957 1100 3837
Additions - 02 1077 1079
Transfers 5386 760 (129 6) -
Disposals (82) 80) - (16 2)
At 25 January 2014 123 4 2639 881 475 4
Additions - - 1447 1447
Transfers 490 839 (132 9) -
Disposals {42) (16 3} - (20 5)
At 31 January 2015 168 2 3315 999 599 6
Accumulated amortisation
At 26 January 2013 41 1) {128 9) - (170 0)
Charge for the year (19 5) (35 0) - (54 5)
Disposals 82 78 - 160
At 25 January 2014 (52 4) (156 1} - (208 5}
Charge for the year (30 6) (45 5) - {76 1}
Disposals 42 163 - 205
At 31 January 2015 (78 8) {185 3) - (264 1}
Net book value at January 2013 369 66 8 1100 2137
Net book value at January 2014 710 107 8 881 2669
Net book value at January 2015 89 4 146 2 999 3355

For the year to 31 January 2015, computer systems valued at £132 9m (2014 £129 6m) were brought
into use This covered a range of selling, support, supply chain, administration and information
technology infrastructure applications, with asset lives ranging from three to ten years

Amortisation of intangible assets 1s charged within operating expenses

40




JOHN LEWIS PLC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

11 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Fixtures, Assets in Total
buillding fittings and course of
equipment construction
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 26 January 2013 3,8912 1,627 8 1121 5,6311
Additions 01 21 4230 4252
Transfers 154 8 187 6 (342 4) -
Disposals {118) (79 5) - (910)
At 25 January 2014 4,034 6 1,738 0 1927 5,965 3
Additions - 14 5127 514 1
Transfers 3310 2108 (541 8) -
Disposals (64 6) {135 3) - {199 9)
Transfers to assels held for sale (133) - (62) (19 5)
At 31 January 2015 4,2877 1,814 9 157 4 6,260 0
Accumulated depreciation
Al 26 January 2013 {740 4) {1,089 8) - {1.8102)
Charge for the year {100 4) (154 2) - (254 6)
Disposals 74 793 - 867
At 25 January 2014 (833 4) {1,144 7) - (1,978 1
Charge for tha year* (116 6) {165 1) - {281 7)
Disposals 215 1346 - 156 1
Transfers to assets held for sale 38 - - 38
At 31 January 2015 924 7) {1,175 2) - {2,099 9}
Net book value at January 2013 31508 558 0 1121 38209
Net book value at January 2014 3,2012 593 3 1827 3,9872
Net book value at January 2015 3,363 0 6397 157 4 4,160 1

*

Charge for the year ending 31 January 2015 includes an impairment charge of £10 3m to land and buildings

Included above are land and builldings assets held under finance leases with a net book value of

£24 4m (2014 £28 1m)

In accordance with IAS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’, the Group tests its property, plant and equipment
for mpairment, whenever events or circumstances indicate that the value on the balance sheet may
not be recoverable For the purpose of impairment testing, each branch i1s a cash-generating unit

(‘CGU')

The impairrment test compares the recoverable amount for each CGU to the carrying value on the
balance sheet The key assumptions used in the calculations are the discount rate, long term growth

rate and expected sales performance and branch costs
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11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The value In use calculation 1s based on five year cash flow projections using the latest budget and
forecast data Any changes In sales performance and branch costs are based on past experience and

expectations of future changes in the market The forecasts are then extrapolated beyond the five
year perniod using a long term growth rate of 20% (2014 3 2%) The discount rate 1s based on the
Group's pre-tax weighted average cost of capital of between 9to 10% (2014 9 to 10%)

Having apphed the above methodology and assumptions, the Group recognised an impairment
charge of £10 3m to land and bulldings in the Waitrose division The impairment charge reflects the
revision of the long term forecast cashfiows as a result of trading in a highly competitive and
deflationary market

A reduction of 0 5% n the long term growth rate would result in an additonal impairment charge of
£99m An increase in the discount rate by 0 5% would result in an additional impairment charge of
£22 4m

12 Inventories

2015 2014

£m Em

Raw matenals 44 40
Work in progress 10 09
Finished goods and goods for resale 5753 549 1
5807 554 0

The cost of inventory recognised as an expense by the Group Iin the year was £6,426 9m (2014
£6,008 9m) Provisions against inventories of £5 1m were charged (2014 £7 9m charged) in branch
operating expenses

13 Trade and other receivables

2015 2014
£m £m
Current

Trade recewables 573 551
Other receivables 579 48 1
Prepayments and accrued income 931 1225
2083 2257

Non-current
Other receivables 161 131
Prepayments and accrued income 466 48 2
627 613

Trade recevables are non-interest bearing and generally on credit terms of less than 90 days
Concentrations of credit nsk are considered to be very imited The carrying armount of trade and other
receivables approximates to far value and 15 denominated in sterling Within trade receivables 1s
accrued rebate income of £6 5m (2014 £9 1m) Supplier income that has been invoiced but not paid

42




JOHN LEWIS PLC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

13 Trade and other receivables {continued)

15 Included in trade recevables and supplier Income that has been invoiced but not yet settled against
future trade creditor balances Is included in trade creditors

As of 31 January 2015, trade and other recewvables of £16m (2014 £2 2m) were fully impaired
Movements in the allowance for mpaired recevables were as follows

2015 2014

£m £m

Al start of year 22) (23)
Charged to income statement {o1) (c8)
Utilised 06 05
Released to income statement 01 02
At end of year {16) (2 2)

The creation and release of the allowance for impaired receivables have been included in branch
operating expenses In the income statement

As of 31 January 2015, trade and other receivables of £18 3m (2014 £24 4m) were past due but not
impaired The ageing analysis of the past due amounts 1s as follows

2015 2014

£m f£m

Up to 3 months past due 16 5 195
3 to 12 months past due 09 29
Over 12 menths past due 09 20
183 24 4

14 Assets held for sale
At 31 January 2015, one property was recorded as held for sale totalling £15 7m (25 January 2014

nit) It 1s held within the John Lewis Division Since 31 January 2015, the asset classified as held for
sale has been sold for an amount in excess of carrying value
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15 Cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014

£m £m

Cash at bank and t1n hand 997 1177
Short-term investments 2401 2412
3398 asg g

For the year ended 31 January 2015, the effective interest rate on short-term investments was 0 5%
(2014 0 4%) and these deposits had an average maturity of 1 day (2014 1 day)

At 31 January 2015, £38 3m (2014 £39 1m) of the Group's cash balance and £0 1m (2014 £0 3m) of
the Group’s accrued interest balance was pledged as collateral This 1s part of the Group’s insurance
arrangements and the release of these funds 1s subject to approval from third parties

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, net cash and cash equivalents are shown after deducting
bank overdrafts, as follows

2015 2014

£m Em

Cash and cash equivalents, as above 3398 3589
Less bank overdrafts (61 4) (75 6)
Net cash and cash equivalents 2784 2833

16 Analysis of financial assets

Short-term trade and other receivables and denvative financial assets are excluded from this analysis,
on the basis that they are primarily non-interest beanng and denominated in steriing

Floating Non-interest Total
rate bearing

Currency analysis £m £m £m
Sterling 3224 17 1 3385
Other 03 - 03
At 31 January 2015 3227 171 3398
Sterling 3436 152 358 8
Other 01 - 01
At 25 January 2014 3437 162 358 9

Floating rate assets are bank balances and short-term deposits at market rates or the base rate of the
relevant currency Non-interest bearing balances include cash floats, pnmanly heid in the stores
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17 Borrowings and overdrafts

2015 2014
£m £m
Current

Bank overdraft (614) (75 6}
(61 4) (7586)

Non-current
Partnership Bond, 2016* (57 1) (56 6)
8§%,% Bonds, 2019 (275 0} (275 0)
6'/s% Bonds, 2025 {300 0) (300 0)
4'1,% Bonds, 2034 {300 0) -
Unamortised bond transaction costs 107 52
5% First Cumulative Preference Stock {15) (15}
7% Cumulative Preference Stock (08) (0 8)
(923 7) 628 7)

* The Partnership Bond 1s a five year investment product offenng a fixed annual return of 4 5% n cash and a further 2% in
John Lewis Partnership gift vouchers

All borrowings are unsecured, denominated in sterhing, and are repayable on the dates shown, at par

In December 2014, the Group 1ssued a £300m bond with an interest rate of 4 25% The bond I1s due to
be repaid in 2034

If the preference dividends are n arrears on In the event of winding up the 5% First Cumulative
Preference Stock and the 7% Cumulative Preference Stock have one vote per share Otherwise, the
holders of preference stock have cne vote for every ten shares, whereas the holders of Ordinary
Shares have one vote for every ordinary share held The amounts receivable in a winding up would
be limited to the amounts paid up, the 5% First Cumulative Preference Stock taking pnionty over the
7% Cumulative Preference Stock
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18 Trade and other payables

2015 2014
£m £m
Current
Trade payables (8327) {788 1)
Amounts owed to parent undertaking {108 5} {101 4)
Other payables {136 9} {122 8)
Other taxation and social secunty {161 1} {167 6)
Accruals (187 7} {189 6)
Deferred income: {52 5) (46 7)
Partnership Bonus (141 4) {183 1)
(1,620 8) (1,599 3)
Non-current
Other payables {0 5) (06)
Deferred income {175 4) (134 9)
(175 9) {135 5)
The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to fair value
19 Finance !ease habilities
2015 2014
£m £m
The mimmum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows
Not later than one year {43) {4 8)
Later than one year but not more than five (10 5) (12 9)
More than five years (38 8) (44 8}
{53 6) (62 5)
Future finance charge on finance leases 222 268
Present valus of finance lease llabibes (314) (357)
Of which
Not later than one year (31) (3 3)
Later than one year but not more than five (6 9) (8 6)
More than five years (21 4) (23 8)

The Group's finance lease habihities relate to bulldings and plant, property and equipment that have

been classified as finance leases in accordance with 1AS 17 Leases
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20 Provisions

Long Service Customer Insurance Other Total
leave guarantee refunds claims
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 25 January 2014 (112 8) (57 4) (26 2) (257) (36 D) (258 1}
Charged to income statement (16 8) (33 3) (29 6) (12 8) (20 0) (112 5)
Released to income statement 13 87 - - 90 190
Utised 86 205 262 115 167 835
At 31 January 2015 (119 7) {61 5} {29 6) (27 0) (30 3) {268 1)
Of which
Current {38 8) (20 6) (29 6) (5 0) (16 1) (110 1)
Non-current (809 (40 9} - (22 0) (14 2) {158 0}

The Group has a long leave scheme, open to all Partners, which provides up to six months’ paid leave
after 25 years’ service There 1s no proportional entittement for shorter penods of service The
provision for the habilities under the scheme 1s assessed on an actuanal basis, reflecting Partners’
expected service profiles, and using economic assumptions consistent with those used for the
Group's retirement benefit obligations (note 23), with the exception of the discount rate, where a rate
appropriate to the shorter duration of the long leave hability 1s used, so as to accrue the cost over
Partners’ service perods

Provisions for service guarantee costs reflect the Group's expected liabiity for future repar cosis
based on estimated failure rates and unit repair costs for the classes of goods scld

Provisions for customer refunds reflects the Group's expected hability for returns of goods sold based
on expenence of rates of return

Prowvisions for insurance claims are in respect of the Group’s employer's, public and vehicle thurd party
hability insurances and extended warranty products

Provisions for insurance clams are based on reserves held in the Group's captive insurance
company, JLP Insurance Limited These reserves are established using independent actuaral
assessments wherever possible, or the reasonable assessment based on past claims experience

Other provisions include reorganisation costs, accrued holiday pay and property related costs

The exact tirming of utilisation of these provisions will vary according to the individual circumstances
However, the Group’s best estimate of utilisation 1s provided above
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21 Management of financial nsks

21.1 Capital and long-term funding risk

The Group's objectives when managing capital (defined as net debt plus equity) are to safeguard its
abihity to continue as a going concern, provide returns for its Partners and to maintain a prudent level
of debt funding The Group 15 a long-term business, held in trust for the benefit of its Partners The co-
ownership model means that it 1s not able to raise equity externally

The Group manages capital to ensure an appropriate balance between investing in Partner, customer
and profit The policy Is to maintain a prudent capital structure, consistent with the financial nsk profile
of an investment grade credit rating Although the Group does not have an externa! credit rating, it
routinely monitors its capital and liquidity requirements using leverage and performance ratios
commonly used by rating agencies to assess nsk, whist mantaming an appropnate level of
committed debt headroom and a smooth debt maturity profile to reduce refinancing nsk and ensure
continuity of funding The Group borrows centrally to meet the requirements of its divisions using a
mix of funding ncluding capital market 1ssues and bank facilites The Group further diversified its
funding sources through the 1ssue of a Partnership bond to its Partners and customers in Aprl 2011

Other forms of borrowing include assets acquired via finance leases, assets obtained for use via
operating leases and a small amount of cumulative preference stock

21.2 Liquidity nisk

Liquidity requirements are managed in line with short and long-term cash flow forecasts and reviewed
against the Group’s debt portfolio and matunty profile Surplus cash 1s invested n interest beanng
current accounts, term deposits and money market funds with sufficient, prudent, iquidity determined
by the above mentioned cash flow forecasts The Group actively reviews and manages its sources of
debt and commuitted credit faciities In January 2014, the Group entered into an 18 month £150m
bilateral borrowing faciity At the year end the Group had undrawn committed revolving borrowings
faciities of £475m (2014 £475m) In addition to these facilihes, the Group has listed bonds totalling
£875m (2014 £575m) of which £275m mature in 2019, £300m in 2025 and £300m in 2034 The
Group has a retail bond, the 'Parinership bond’, issued in Apnl 2011 and matuning in 2016, which
raised gross proceeds of £68m The bonds are not subject to repnicing, and their interest rates and
matunty profiles are set out In note 24

The Group's bank borrowing facilities contain financial covenants Throughout the year the Group
maintained comfortable headroom aganst its covenants and I1s expected to do so into the foreseeable
future

The Group's tota!l committed sources of avadable funds at the date of signing these accounts are
£1,408m (2014 £1,108m)
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21 Management of financial risks (continued)

The following analysis shows the contractual undiscounted cash flows payable under financial
kabilities and derivative financial liabilities at the balance sheet date

Due within Due Due 2 years
1 year between and heyond
1 and 2
years
£m £m £m
Non-denvative financial labilities
Borrowings and overdrafts {614) {57 8} (877 3)
Interest payments on borrowings” {56 8) {56 8) (432 8)
Finance lease Liabilities (4 3) (4 9) (44 4)
Trade and other payables (1,298 7) (0 5) -
Denvative financial habiites
Denvative contracls — receipts 2089 2238 -
Denvative contracts — payments {206 1) (22 9) -
At 31 January 2015 {1,418 4) (120 1) (1,354 5)

Due wathin Due between Due 2 years

1 year 1and 2 and beyond
years

£m £m £m

Non-denvative financial labilihies
Borrowings and overdrafts (75 6) - {635 1)
Interest payments on borrowings™ (44 Q) (44 0) (260 1)
Finance lease habilities {4 8) 4 4) (63 3)
Trade and other payables (1,385 0) (0 6) -

Denvative financial habilites

Denvative contracts - receipts 1850 287 -
Denvative coniracts — payments (190 8) {28 1) -
At 25 January 2014 (1,515 2) {49 4) (948 5)

* Excludes annual interest of £0 1m on cumulative preference stock which have no fixed redemption date

Interest on borrowings 1s calculated based on the borrowing position throughout the financial year,
without taking account of future issues

For the purposes of this note, the foreign currency element of forward foreign currency contracts I1s
translated at spot rates prevailing at the year end

21.3 Interest rate risk

In order to manage the nisk of interest rate fluctuations on the Group's financial debt and cash, the
Group targets a ratio of fixed and floating rate debt in line with the Partnership Board approved
treasury policy An analysis of the Group’s financial labiities 1s detaled in note 24 Exposures to
interest rate fluctuations are managed using interest rate derivatives
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21 Management of financial risks (continued)

21.4 Foreign currency risk

The Group uses denvative financial instruments to manage exposures to movements in exchange
rates ansing from transactons with overseas based suppliers and retallers Foreign exchange
management committees exist for each of the John Lewis and Waitrose Divisions and they met
regularly to oversee the foreign exchange purchasing activities for each division Foreign currency
exposures are hedged pnmarly using forward foreign exchange contracts covering up to 100% of
forecast exposures on a rolling basis Forward foreign exchange contracts used to hedge forecast
currency requirements are designated as cash flow hedges with fair value movements recognised In
equity Denvative financial instruments that were designated as cash flow hedges during the year
were effective At the balance sheet date, the notional value of open forward foreign currency
contracts of £2317m (2014 £2137m) had been entered into to hedge purchases in foreign
currencies which will mature over the next 18 months

21 5 Credit risk

The Group has no significant exposure to an individual customer's credit nsk due to transactions
being principally of a high volume, low value and short matunty Cash deposits and other financial
instruments give nse to credit nsk on the amounts due from counterparties These nsks are managed
by restricting such transactions to an approved list of counterparties, who have a credit rating not less
than a Standard & Poor's equivalent ‘A’ rating for investments and ‘BBB’ for the provision of
operational cash management services Appropnate credit imits are designated to each counterparty

The Group considers its maximum exposure to credit nisk s as follows

2015 2014

£m £m

Trade and other recevables 1313 1163
Cash and cash equivalents 3398 is8 g
Denvative financial nstruments 96 07
480 7 4759

21.6 Energy nsk

The Group operates nsk management processes for the Group's energy costs associated with its
activiies The Group's energy policy 1s reviewed by an energy committee which meets regularly to
review pricing exposure to electnoty and gas consumption and determines strategy for forward
purchasing and hedging of energy costs using flexible purchase contracts
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21 Management of financial nsks (continued)

21.7 Sensitivity analysis

The following analysis illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s financial instruments to changes in
market vanables, namely UK interesl rates and the US dollar and euro to sterling exchange rates The
level of sensitivities chosen, being 1% movement in Sterling interest rates and a 10% movement In
sterling when compared to the US dollar and euro, provide a reasonable basis to measure sensitivity
whiist not being the Group’s view of what 1s likely to happen n the future

The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market vanables on the carrying value of pension
and other post-retirement obligations and provisions

The analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating
rate borrowings and the proportion of financial nstruments 1n foreign currencies are constant
throughout the year, based on positions as at the year end

The following assumptions have been made In calculating the sensitivity analysis

+ the sensitivity of interest costs to movements In interest rates 1s calculated using floating rate debt
and investment balances prevailing at the year end,

+ changes In the carrying value of derivative financial instruments not in hedging relationships are
assumed only to affect the income statement, and

« all derivative financial instruments designated as hedges are assumed to be fully effective

2015 2014
Income Equity income Equity

Statement Statement
+-£€m +-Em +H-£m +-£m
UK interest rates +/- 1% (2014 +/- 1%) 24 - 27 -
US dollar exchange rate +/-10% (2014 +/- 10%} 04 107 04 93
Eurc exchange rate +/- 10% (2014 +/- 10%) 13 88 01 96
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22 1 Basis of fair value
Fair value estimation

The different levels per the IFRS 13 farr value hierarchy have been defined as follows
Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted} In active markets for identical assets or habihties

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or
lrability, either directly (that 1s, as pnces) or indirectly (that 1s, dernived from pnces)

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data {that 1s,
unobservable inputs)

During the year ended 31 January 2015, there have been no transfers between any levels of the IFRS
13 fair value hierarchy and there were no reclassifications of financial assets as a result of a change
in the purpose or use of those assets

22 2 Fair value of derivative financial instruments
The fair value of derivative financial instruments 1s as follows

2015 2014

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabiliies

Falr value of derivative financial instruments £m £m £m £m
Currency denvatives — cash flow hedge 96 (6 6) 07 (59)

The farr value of a denivative financial instrument represents the difference between the value of the
outstanding contracts at their contracted rates and a valuation calculated using the forward rates of
exchange and Interest rates prevailing at the balance sheet date

The fair value of the derivative financial instruments held by the Group are classified as level 2 under
the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy, as all significant inputs to the valuation model used are based on
observable market data and are not traded 1n an active market

Specific valuation techruques used to value the financial instruments include quoted market prices
There have been no changes in valuation techniques from the pror year

22 3 Fair value of financial assets and habilities held at amortised cost

The following table compares the Group’s habilities held at amortised cost, where there 1s a difference
between carrying value (CV) and far value (FV)

2015 2014
£m £m
Ccv Fv cv FV

Financial liabilities
Listed bonds (864 5} {1,031 2) (569 8) (695 4)
Preference stock (23) @ (23) (20)

The fair values of the Group’s listed bonds and preference stock have been determined by reference
to market price quotations and are classified as Level 1 under the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy

For other financal assets and labiities, there are no material differences between carrying value and
fair value
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23 Retirement benefit obhigations

The prnincipal pension scheme operated by the Group 1s the John Lewis Partnership Trust for
Pensions The scheme 1s a funded final salary defined benefit pension scheme, providing pensions
and death benefits to members, and 1s open to new members All contnbutions to the scheme are
funded by the Group

The scheme 1s governed by a Trustee which i1s independent of the Group The Trustee I1s responsible
for the operation and governance of the scheme, including making decisions regarding the scheme's
Investment strategy

In January 2015, Partnership Council voted in favour of changes to the level and form of future
provision of pension benefits to Partners The changes will take place in two stages From 1 Apnil
2015 the waiting peniod to join the Defined Benefit section of the scheme will increase from 3 to 5
years Then from 1 Aprl 2016, the principal changes are to reduce the defined benefit accrual rate
from 1/60th to 1/120th of final salary, and to provide an enhanced ievel of Defined Contribution
pension for those Partners who have completed the waiting perrod Other changes, applying only
to any pension built up after 1 April 2016, include linking the Group normal retirement age to the State
Pension Age, and a change in the rate of pension increases in payment

The scheme 1s subject to a full actuanal valuation every three years on assumptions agreed between
the Trustee and the Group The most recent valuation was carned out by an independent
professionally qualified actuary as at 31 March 2013 and resulted in a funding deficit of £840 Om The
market value of the assets of the scheme as at 31 March 2013 was £3,169 0m The actuanal
valuation showed that these assets were sufficient to cover 79% of the benefits which had accrued to
members

Following this valuation, the Group and the Trustee agreed to increase the normal future annual
contnbution rate to 16 4% of gross taxable pay of members and put in place a plan to eliminate the
deficit over a 10 year penod through deficit reduction contributions of £44 3m per year, increasing on
31 March each year by 3%, in addition to a one-off contnbution of £85 O0m made in January 2014 In
December 2014, the Group agreed to prepay the outstanding deficit reduction contributions up to July
2021 by making a payment of £294 1m

The balance of the deficit 1s expected to be met by investment returns on the scheme assets Total
contributicns to the scheme in 2016 under this agreement are expected to be £167 7m

The next tnennial actuariat valuation of the scheme will take place as at 31 March 2016

The cost of the scheme to the Group depends upon a number of assumptions about future events
Future contnibutions may be higher (or lower) than those currently agreed If these assumptions are
not borne out In practice or if different assumptions are appropnate in the future
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23 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Specific risks include:

e Changes in future expectations of price inflation The majonty of the scheme's benefit obligations
are linked to inflation and higher inflation will lead to higher liabiites Hence, an increase in
inflation will increase the deficit

« Changes in the discount rate used to value pension habilities A lower discount rate will lead to a
higher present value being placed on future pension payments Hence a reduction in discount
rate will increase the deficit

« The return on assets being lower than assumed |If the rate of growth in assets falls below the
discount rate used to value the habilities then the pension deficit will increase

« Falls In asset values not being matched by similar falls in the value of iabilites As the majority of
assets held by the scheme are not maiched to the habilities of the scheme, a fall in plan assets
will lead to an increase 1n the deficit

e Unanticipated increase In ife expectancy leading to an increase 1n the scheme's labihtes An
increase In life expectancy would mean pensions are expected to be paid for a longer penod, so
increasing the labiity and the scheme's defieit This 1s offset by the scheme applying a Life
Expectancy Adjustment Factor, whereby future penstons coming into payment are adjusted in
part to allow for increases in hfe expectancy

Pension commitments recognised in these accounts have been calculated based on the most recent
actuanal valuation, as at 31 March 2013, which has been updated by actuaries to reflect the assets
and habilities of the scheme as at 31 January 2015, calculated on assumptions that are appropnate
for accounting under IAS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’

23.1 Financial assumptions

Scheme assets are stated at market values at 31 January 2015 The following financial assumphons
have been used

2015 2014
Discount rate 315% 4 40%
Future retail price inflation (RP1) 2 80% 330%
Future consumer pnce inflation (CPI} 180% 230%
Increase in eamings 3 30% 3 80%
Increase in pensions - in payment 270% 3 00%
Increase 1n pensions — deferred 180% 2 30%

Increases in earnings are projected at 0 5% (2014 0 5%) above retail pnce inflation, with increases in
pensions in payment being 0 1% (2014 0 3%) below retail price inflation, reflecting the impact of a
cap on the level of pension Increases, and increases in deferred pensions are projected to be in hne
with consumer price inflation

The post-retrement mortality assumptions used n valuing the pensions labilities were based on the
“S1 Light” senes standard tables Based on scheme experience, the probability of death at each age
was multiphed by 127% for males and 114% for females Future /mprovements n life expectancy
have been allowed for in ine wath the standard CMI medel projections subject to a long term trend of
125%
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23 Retirement benefit obhigations (continued)

23 2 Demographic assumptions
The average iife expectancies assumed were as follows

2015 2014

Men Women Men Women

Average life expectancy for a 60 year old (in years) 269 290 268 289

Average life expectancy at age 60, for a 40 year old {(In years) 288 310 287 309

23 3 Amounts recognised in the financial statements

2015 2014
Amounts recogrised in the balance sheet £m £m
Defined benefit obligation for funded arrangements (5,280 0) (4,201 2)
Defined benefit obhigation for unfunded arrangements (210) (17 0)
Total defined benefit obligation (5,301 0) {4,218 2)
Total value of assets 4,051 7 3,214 8
Defined benefit hability at year end (1,249 3} (1,003 4)
2015 2014

Amounts recognised In the income statement £m £m
Current service cost (170 1) (151 2)
Past service cost 31) B80)
Contnbution expense™® {11 1) 94)
Administrative expenses - pension scheme {4 4) (4 5)
Administrative expenses - other (24) (26)
Total operating expenses {1911) (175 7)
Net interest on net defined benefit hability (37 6) (353)
Total pension charge (228 T) (211 0)

*

Partners in lieu of future pension accrual

Includes Group contnbutions to the defined contribution scheme, together with cash supplements in respect of certain

The past service cost of £3 1m relates tc additional pension habiittes of £6 5m ansing from a
legislative change in the calculation of holiday pay, offset by a release of £3 4m following the
finalisation of the review of the Group's heliday pay policy, which 1s described in note 3

In 2014, the past service cost of £8 Om relates to additional pension habilities ansing from the
correction of pensionable pay for certain members arising from the review of the Group's holiday pay

policy, which is described in note 3
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23 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

23 4 Amounts recognised I1n equity

2015 2014
Amounts recognised in equity £m £m
Return on plan assets greater/(less) than the discount rate 3128 (487}
Remeasurements
— loss from changes n financtal assumptrons {844 2) (234 9)
- expenence gams 79 394
Total losses recognised tn equity (523 5) {245 2}
Cumulative loss recognised in equity (1,514 3) (990 8)
23 5 Retirement benefit obligations

2015 2014
Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability £m £m
Net defined benefit [lability at beginning of year {1,003 4) (822 1)
Pension expense (215 2) (199 0}
Contnbutions 492 8 2629
Total losses recogmsed in equity (523 5) (245 2)
Net defined benefit liabllity at end of year (1,249 3) {1,003 4}

2015 2014
Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation £m £m
Defined benefit obligation at beginming of year (4,218 2) (3.796 0)
Service cost (173 2) (159 2)
Interest on pension labilities (183 1) (172 5)
Remeasurements
- loss from changes in financial assumptions (844 2} (234 9)
— expenence gans 79 394
Benefits paid 1098 1050
Defined benefit obligation at end of year (5,301 0} (4,218 2)

The scheme habiliies are 51% In respect of active scheme participants, 16% n respect of deferred
scheme participants and 33% in respect of retirees

The weighted average duration of the scheme habilities at the end of the period 1s 21 years
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23 Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

23 6 Scheme assets

2015 2014
Reconciliation of value of assets £m Em
Value of assets at the beginming of year 3,214 8 29739
Interest income on assets 1455 137 2
Retum on plan assets greater/(less) than discount rate 3128 (49 7)
Benefits paid (109 8) {105 0)
Admunistrative expenses paid {4 4) (4 5)
Contnbutions 492 8 2629
Value of assets at the end of year 4,051 7 3,214 8
23.7 Analysis of assets
2015 2014
Analysis of assets £m % £m %
Listed Equities 1,288 2 32% 1,249 9 39%
Pnvate Equities 2566 6% 2353 7%
Properties 3731 9% 206 4 6%
Government Bonds* 6095 15% 2185 7%
Credit™ 3442 9% 3047 10%
Infrastructure 127 4 3% 1150 4%
Investment Funds 914 1 23% 3977 12%
Cash and Other*** 1386 3% 486 3 15%
4,017 3,214 8

(£200 9m at 31 January 2015)

followang the year end

Government bond holdings at 31 January 2015 consisted of a portfoho of long dated index inked govermment bonds

Credit holdings consist of short dated listed comporate bond holdings (£143 3m at 31 January 2015} and unlisted credit

Cash holdings at 31 January 2015 include £100 Om which was invested n long dated index linked government bonds

The Trustee’s investment strategy as set out in theirr statement of Investment Principles dated 11
March 2014 1s to hold 15% of assets in a lability matching portfolic mainly consisting of index linked
government bonds of an appropnate duration The remaining 85% 1s invested in a return seeking
portfolio that aims to reduce concentrations of rnisk by diversifying across a range of asset classes and

geographies

2015 2014
Actual return on assets £m £m
Interest income oh assels 1455 137 2
Return on plan assets greater/(less) than discount rate 3128 (49 7)
Actual return on assets 458 3 875
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23 Retirement benefit obligations {(continued)

23.8 Sensitivity analysis

The net defined benefit abligation 1s inherently volatile to the financial assumptions used llustrated
below 1s the sensitivity of the balance sheet position to changes in key assumptions The sensitivities
have been derived using approximate methods which are consistent with the rest of the disclosure

£m % change
Liability as at 31 January 2015 (1,249 3)
Sensitivity of 0 1% increase to
— Discount rate 1080 8 6%
— Retall price inflation (89 0) (7 9%)
= Consumer price inflation (150) (1 2%)
— Salary increases (250) (2 0%)
Sensitvity of one year increase in life expectancy (165 0) (13 1%)

23.9 Other arrangements

On 30 January 2010, the Group entered into an arrangement with the Pension Scheme Trustees to

address an element of the scheme deficit that existed at that time

The Group established two partnerships, JLP Scottish Limited Partnership and JLP Scottish

Partnership, which are both consolidated within these Group financial statements

Together with another Group company, JLP Scottish Limited Partnership provided sufficient capital to
JLP Scottish Partnership to enable it to procure property assets with a market value of £150 9m from
other Group compames The Group retains control over these properties, including the flexibility to
substitute alternative properties The Properties held in JLP Scottish Partnership have been leased
back to John Lewis plc and Waitrose Limited 1n January 2015 the Group withdrew a property with a

market value of £0 Om

As a partner in JLP Scottish Limted Partnership, the pension scheme 1s entitled to an annual share of
the profits of the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership each year over 21 years At the end of this period,
the partnership capital allocated to the pension scheme will be reassessed, depending on the funding
position of the pension scheme at that ime, with a potential value in the range £0 5m to £99 5m At

that point, the Group may be required to transfer this amount in cash to the scheme

Under IAS 19, the investment held by the pension scheme in JLP Scottish Limited Partnership, a
consolidated entity, does not represent a plan asset for the purpose of the Group's consolidated

financial statements Accordingly, the pension deficit position presented mn these consolidated

accounts does not reflect the £83 9m (2014 £87 9m) investment in JLP Scottish Limsted Partnership

held by the pension scheme The distribution of JLP Scottish Limited Partnership profits to the

pension scheme s reflected as pension contributions Iin these consolidated financial statements on a

cash basis
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24 Analysis of financial habilities

Short-term trade payables are excluded from this analysis on the bas:s that they are all nen-interest
bearing

Fixed rate Floating Total
rate
Currency analysis £m £m £m
All sterling
At 31 January 2015 (955 1) (61 4) {1,016 5)
At 25 January 2014 (664 4) (75 6) {740 0)
2015 2014
Maturity of financial liabilities £m £m
Repayable within one year
Bank overdrafts (61 4) (756)
Property finance leases (31} (33)
(64 5) (78 9)
Repayable between one and two years
Property finance leases (3 8} 31)
Bonds (57 1) -
Unamortised bond transaction costs 02 -
(60 7) (31)
Repayable between two and five years
Property finance leases 3 1) (5 5)
Bonds {275 0} (56 6)
Unamortised bond transaction costs 12 03
(276 9) (61 8)
Repayable in more than five years
Property finance leases {21 4) (23 8)
Bonds {600 0) (575 Q)
Unamortised bond transaction costs 93 49
Cumulative Preference Stock 23) (23)
(614 4) (596 2)
(1,016 5) (740 0)
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2015 2014
Authorisod 1ssued and Authonised Issued and
fully paid fully pad
£m £m £m £m
Equity
Ordinary Shares
6,750,000 of £1 each 67 67 67 67
26 Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations
2015 2014
£m £m
Profit before tax 1933 126 1
Amortisation of intangtble assets 761 545
Depreciation 2817 2546
Net finance costs 98 2 926
Partnership Bonus 156 2 2025
(ProfitVloss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (12 3) 16
Increase In inventones (26 7} (400)
Decreasef{(increase) in recevables 193 (32 3)
Increase in payables 126 8 1353
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations (21 2) (14 2)
Increase In provisions 01 101
Cash generated from operations 8915 7838
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27 Analysis of net debt

2014 Cash flow Other 201S
non-cash
movements
£m £m £m £m
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3589 (191) - 3398
Denivative financial instruments 07 - 89 96
3596 (191) 89 3494
Current liabilities
Bomrowings and overdrafts (75 6} 14 2 - (614)
Finance leases {33) 44 (42) 31)
Denvative financial instruments {59) - (07) (6 6)
(84 8) 186 (49) (71 1)
Non-current llabilihes
Borrowings {633 9) (299 9) (0 8} (934 4)
Unamortised bond transaction costs 52 61 (0 6) 107
Finance leases (32 4) - 41 (28 3)
(661 1) (293 8) 29 (952 0)
Total net debt {386 3) (294 3) 69 673 7)
Reconciliation of net cash flow to net debt
2015 2014
£m £m
Becrease in net cash and cash equivalents in the year {4 9) (194 8)
Cash (inflow)/outflow from movement in debt and lease financing {289 4) 103 1
Movement in debt for the year {284 3) (917)
Opening nel debt {386 3) (284 9)
Non-cash movements 69 97
Closing net debt (673 7) {386 3)
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28 Commitments and contingencies
28.1 Capital commitments

At 31 January 2015 contracts had been entered into for future capital expenditure of £39 4m (2014
£106 8m) of which £36 Om (2014 £106 2m) relates to property, plant and equipment and £3 4m
{2014 £0 6m) relates to intangible assets

28.2 Lease guarantees

John Lewis plc continues to provide lease guarantees in favour of the Group's former associate
company, Ocado Limited, of £6 8m {2014 £6 8m)

28.3 Commitments under operating leases

2015 2014

Land and Land and

Future aggregate minimum lease payments buildings buldings
Under non-cancellable operating loases, payable £m £m
Within one year 1703 148 5
Later than one year and less than five years 5878 5353
After five years 2,6618 2,387 8
2015 2014

Future aggregate minimum lease payments Land and Land and
under non-cancellable operating leases, payable buildings buildings
after five years comprise the fallowing £m £m
Later than five years and less than 10 years 7453 577 4
Later than 10 years and less than 20 years 9323 7118
Later than 20 years and less than 40 years 465 1 3296
Later than 40 years and less than 80 years 2382 267 9
After 80 years 2809 4811
2,6618 2,387 8

Total future sub-lease payments receivable relating to the above operating leases amounted to £6 8m
(2014 £9 2m)
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29 Related party transactions

29.1 Subsidianes

All transactions between the Group and its subsidiaries are elminated upon consolidation, and
therefore do not need to be disclosed separately A list of subsidiaries within the Group are included
within note 54

29 2 Arrangements with Pension Scheme Trustee

The Group entered into an arrangement with the Pension Scheme Trustee on 30 January 2010 to
address an element of the scheme deficit that existed at that time Details of this arrangement and
changes made in September 2011 are set out in note 23

in December 2011 the Group sold a property to the main pension scheme for £10 6m and entered
into an operating lease in respect of the property These transactions were at market values In the
year to 31 January 2015, £1 1m was paid in respect of the operating lease (2014 £0 9m)

29 3 Arrangements with the John Lewis Partnership Trust Limited

The John Lewis Partnership Trust Limited 1s a related party and holds the Deferred Ordinary Shares
in the Group on behalf of the Pariners The John Lewis Partnership Trust Limited faciitates the
approval and payment of the Partnership Bonus and BonusSave At the year end, the Share Incentive
Plan shares 1ssued to the John Lewis Partnership Trust Limited as part of the BonusSave scheme are
recorded in the Company’s balance sheet within borrowings of £104 2m (2014 £97 2m)

29 4 Other transactions
Key management compensation has been disclosed in note 9
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2015 2014
Notes Em £m
Non-current assets
33 Intangible assets 2344 1736
34 Property, plant and equipment 1,005 8 9200
35 Investment in subsidianes 1,389 3 1,402 4
37 Trade and other receivables 493 501
44 Deferred tax asset 2331 187 1
29119 27332
Current assets
36 Inventories 3522 3135
37 Trade and other receivables 1067 1095
Current tax recewvable 637 338
46 Denvatve financial instruments 96 07
38 Cash and cash equivalents 2321 2325
763 3 690 0
Total assets 3,675 2 3,4232
Current liabilities
40 Borrowings and overdrafis (59 8) (7186)
41 Trade and other payables (1,326 4) {1,260 0)
42 Finance lease habilities {0 5) {0 6)
43 Provisions {97 6) {112 3)
46 Denvative financial instruments {6 6) {5 9)
{1,490 9) (1,450 4)
Non-current liabilities
40 Borrowings (923 7) {628 7)
41 Trade and other payables (127 8) {116 7)
42 Finance lease iabiities (14 9) (15 4)
43 Provistons (134 1) {116 9)
50 Retirement benefit obligations {1,165 4) {915 5)
{2,365 9) (1,793 2)
Total liabilities {3,856 8) (3,243 6)
Net {liabllities)fassets (181 6) 1796
Equity
51 Share capital 67 67
Share premium 03 03
QOther reserves 24 (58)
Retained eamings {191 0) 178 4
Total equity {181 6) 179 6

The financial statements on pages 64 to 85 were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 Apnl 2015
and s:gned on its behalf by

Sir Charlie Mayfield and Loraine Woodhouse L\f CQ‘

Directors, John Lewis plc
O‘I\I—‘/Q \f\_)
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Share Share Hedging Retained Total

capital premium reserve  earnings Equity

Notes £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 26 January 2013 67 03 39 (54 8) {43 9)

31 Profit for the year - - - 466 4 466 4
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension schemes - - - (258 5) {258 5)

Tax on above item recognised in equity - - - 253 253

Farr value losses on cash flow hedges - - 68) - (6 6}

- transfers to mventones - - (31) - (31)

Balance at 25 January 2014 67 03 (58) 178 4 1796

31 Profit for the year - - - 4338 438
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension schemes - - - {522 0) (522 0)

Fair value gains on cash flow hedges - - 04 — 04

- transfers to inventories - - 91 - 91

- transfers to property, plant and equipment - - (07} - (07)

Tax on above items recognised 1n equity - - (0 6} 108 8 108 2
Batance at 31 January 2015* 67 03 24 (191 0) {181 6)

* 53 week year
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2015" 2014
Notes £m £m
48 Cash generated from operations 3649 3378
Net taxation received 52 143
Partnership Bonus paid (113 7) (97 6)
23 Additional contribution to the Penston Scheme (294 1) (850)
Finance costs paid 21) {(14)
Net cash {used in)/generated from operating activities (39 8) 168 1
Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (223 6) (135 4)
Purchase of intangible assets (103 5) {751)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 268 06
Loans from/(advanced to) Group companies 1019 (159)
Finance income received 05 15
Net cash used in investing activities (197 9) (224 3)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs pad in respect of bonds {44 0) (54 5)
Movement in finance leases {0 6) 15
Payments to preference shareholders {01) 1)
Cash inflow from borrowings 2938 -
Cash outflow on borrowings - (100 0)
Net cash generated from/{used in) financing activities 2491 {153 1)
Increase/(decrease) in net cash and cash equivalents 114 (209 3)
Net cash and cash equivalents at beqinning of the year 1609 3702
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1723 160 9
38 Net cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash at bank and in hand 303 2986
Short-term investments 2018 2029
Bank overdrafts (59 8) (71 6}
1723 160 9

-

53 week year
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30 Accounting policies

The separate financial statements of the Company are drawn up in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union and with the Companies
Act 2006

The Company’s accounting policies are aligned with the Group's accounting policies as described in
note 1 Additional accounting policies are noted below

Investment in subsidiary undertakings

The Company has a number of investments in subsidiary companies Investments are valued at cost,
less allowances for impairment Imparrment reviews are performed annually

31 Profit and loss of the Company for the year

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, John Lewis pic has not presented its own
income statement or statement of comprehensive expense

The result dealt with 1in the accounts of the Company amounted to £43 8m profit (2014 £466 4m
profit) During the year no intra-group dividend was recewved (2014 £500 Om})

Details of auditors’ remuneration are provided in note 7 to the consoldated financial statements of
John Lewis plc

32 Partners

32 1 Partner numbers
During the year the average number of Partners employed by the Company was as follows

2015 2014

John Lewis 29,900 29,800
Other 1,900 1,800
21,800 31,600
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32 Partners (continued)

32.2 Partner benefits
Employment and related costs were as follows

2015 2014
£m £m
Staff costs

Wages and salanes (578 5) {559 1)
Socal secunty costs (49 0) (48 3)
Partnership Bonus (60 1) (80 5)
Employers’ national insurance on Partnership Bonus {7 4) (99)
Other pension costs (94 4) {87 0)
Long leave cost (3 6) (4 3)
Total before Partner ciscounts {793 0) (789 1)
Partner discounts {excluded from revenue) (40 6} (353)
{833 6} (824 4)

Included above are the following amounts in respect of key management compensation
Salanes and short-term benefits {10 5) 92)
Post-employment benefits* (32) (32)
Compensation for loss of office {(10) -
(14 7) (12 4}

*

Includes pension supplements in lieu of future pension accrual

Key management inctude Dhrectors of the Partnership and the Company, members of the John Lewis
and Partnership Services Management Boards and other officers of the Company Key management
compensation includes salaries, national insurance costs, pension costs and the cost of other
employment benefits, such as company cars, private medical insurance and termination payments

where applicable

Key management participate in the Group’s long leave scheme, which 1s open to all employees and
provides up to six months' paid leave after 25 years’ service There I1s no proportional entitlement for
shorter penods of service It s not practical {c allocate the cost of accruing enbtlement to this benefit

to individuals, and so no allowance has been made for this benefit in the amounts disclosed

32.3 Directors’ emoluments
Directors’ emoluments are disclosed in note 9
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33 Intangible assets

Computer software

Purchased Internally Work in Total
developed progress
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 26 January 2013 404 1032 802 2238
Additions - 02 749 751
Transfers 363 542 {90 5) -
Disposals {4 9) (67) - (11 6)
At 25 January 2014 718 150 8 64 6 287 3
Additions - - 1035 103 5
Transfers 384 46 6 (8330) —
Disposals (12} (57) - (69)
At 31 January 2015 107 0 1918 851 38389
Accumulated amortisation
At 26 January 2013 (23 2) (719) - {95 1)
Charge for the year {92) (21 0) - (30 2)
Disposals 49 67 - 16
At 25 January 2014 (27 5) (86 2) - {113 7)
Charge for the year {18 5) (24 2) - (42 7)
Disposals 12 57 - 69
At 31 January 2015 {44 8) {104 7) - (149 5)
Net book value at January 2013 172 313 802 1287
Net book value at January 2014 44 3 647 646 1736
Net book value at January 2015 622 871 851 234 4

For the year to 31 January 2015 computer systems valued at £83 Om (2014 £90 5m) were brought
into use This covered a range of selling, support, supply chain, admimistration and information
technology infrastructure applications, with asset lives ranging from three to ten years

Amortisation of intangible assets 1s charged within operating expenses
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34. Property, plant and equipment

Land and Fixtures, Assets in Total
building fittings and course of
equipment construction
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 26 January 2013 7235 7548 343 15126
Addittons 01 12 144 1 145 4
Transfers 414 784 {119 8) -
Disposals 05) {45 8) - (46 1)
At 25 January 2014 764 5 7888 586 16118
Additions 452 07 1785 224 4
Transfers 522 878 (1400} -
Disposals (34 5) {43 8) - (78 3)
At 31 January 2015 827 4 8335 971 1,758 0
Accumulated depreclation
At 26 January 2013 {148 7) {486 9) - {635 6)
Charge for the year {26 0) (76 4) - {102 4}
Disposals 05 45§ - 461
At 25 January 2014 {174 2) {517 7) - {691 9)
Charge for the year” 407) (75 9) - {116 6}
Disposals 130 433 - 56 3
At 31 January 2015 {201 9) {550 3) - (752 2)
Net bock value at January 2013 5748 2679 343 8770
Net book value at January 2014 5903 2711 586 9200
Net book value at January 2015 6255 2832 871 1,005 8

Included above are land and buidings assets held under finance leases with a net book value of

£12 3m (2014 £12 5m)

In accordance with 1AS 36 'Impairment of Assets’, the Group tests its property, plant and equipment
for impairment, whenever events or circumstances indicate that the value on the balance sheet may
not be recoverable For the purpose of impairment testing, each branch 1s a cash-generating unit

(‘CGL)
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35. Investments
The Company has the following investments in subsidianes at 31 January 2015

Shares In Loan to Total
group group
companies companies

£m £m £m
At 25 January 2014 417 1.3607 1,402 4
Movements - 13 1) {13 1)
At 31 January 2015 417 1,347 6 1,389 3
A list of subsidiary undertakings i1s provided in note 53
36 Inventories
2015 2014
£m £m
Finished goods and goods for resale 3522 3135
3522 3135

The cost of inventory recognised as an expense by the Company in the year was £2,113 dm {2014
£1,952 9m} Provisions agamnst inventories of £4 3m were charged (2014 £7 7m charged) in branch
operating expenses

37 Trade and other receivables

2015 2014
£m £m
Current

Trade recevables 202 150
Other receivables 393 342
Prepayments and accrued income 462 603
1057 109 5

Non-current
Other recevables 48 40
Prepayments and accrued income 445 461
493 501

Trade recewvables are non-interest bearing and generally on credit terms of less than 90 days
Concentrations of credit nsk are considered to be very imited The carrying amount of trade and other
receivables approximates to farr value and 1s denominated in stering Within trade receivables 1s
accrued rebate income of £3 3m (2014 £5 2m) Supplier Income that has been invoiced but not paid
i5 Included in trade receivables and supplier income that has been invoiced but not yet settled against
future trade creditor balances i1s included in trade creditors
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37 Trade and other receivables continued

As of 31 January 2015, trade and other recewvables of £1 3m (2014 £1 9m) were fully impaired
Movements in the allowance for impaired receivables were as follows

2015 2014

£Em £m

At start of year (19 (18)
Charged to income statement 01 {0 6)
Utilised 06 05
Released to income statement 01 -
At end of year (13) {19

The creation and release of the allowance for impaired recewvables have been included in branch
operating expenses in the Income statement

As of 31 January 2015, trade and other receivables of £14 9m (2014 £16 8m) were past due but not
impaired The ageing analysis of the past due amounts s as follows

2015 2014

£m £m

Up to 3 months past due 136 123
3 to 12 months past due 09 26
Over 12 months past due 04 19
149 168
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38 Cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014

£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 303 296
Short-term investments 2018 2029
2321 2325

For the year ended 31 January 2015, the effective interest rate on short-term investments was 0 5%
(2014 0 4%) and these deposits had an average matunty of 1 day (2014 1 day)

In the Company statement of cash flows, net cash and cash equivalents are shown after deducting
bank overdrafts, as follows

2015 2014

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents, as above 2321 2325
Less bank overdrafts (59 8) (71 6)
Net cash and cash equivalents 1723 160 8

39 Analysis of financial assets

Short-term trade and other receivables and denvative financial assets are excluded from this analysis,
on the basis that they are primanly non-interest bearing and denominated 1n sterling

Floating Non-interest Total
rate bearing

Interest rate and currency analysis Em £m £m
Stering 2282 36 2318
Other 03 - 03
At 31 January 2015 2285 36 2321
Sterling 2290 34 2324
Other 01 - 01
At 25 January 2014 2291 34 2325

Floating rate assets are bank balances and short-term deposits at market rates or the base rate of the
relevant currency Non-interest bearing balances include cash floats, primanly held in the stores
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40 Borrowings and overdrafts

2015 2014
£m £m
Current

Bank overdraft (59 8) (71 6)
(59 8) (71 6)

Non-current
Partnershup Bond, 2016* {57 1) (56 6)
8% Bonds, 2019 (275 0) (275 0}
6'/x% Bonds, 2025 {300 0) (300 0)
4',% Bonds, 2034 (300 0) -
Unamortised bond transaction costs 107 52
5% First Cumulative Preference Stock {15) {15)
7% Cumulative Preference Stock (0 8) 08)
923 7) (628 7)

*  The Partnerstup Bond 1s a five year investment product offenng a fixed annual retum of 4 5% n cash and a further 2% in
John Lewis Partnershup gift vouchers

All borrowings are unsecured, denominated in sterling, and are repayable on the dates shown, at par

In December 2014, the Group 1ssued a £300m bond with an interest rate of 4 25% The bond i1s due to
be repaid in 2034

If the preference dividends are in arrears on In the event of winding up the 5% First Cumufative
Preference Stock and the 7% Cumulative Preference Stock have one vote per share Otherwise, the
holders of preference stock have one vote for every ten shares, whereas the holders of ordinary
shares have one vote for every ordinary share held The amounts receivable in a winding up would be
limited to the amounts paid up, the 5% First Cumulative Preference Stock taking prionty over the 7%
Cumulative Preference Stock
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41 Trade and other payables

2015 2014
£m £m
Current
Trade payables (345 3) (354 0}
Amounts owed to parent company (109 8) (102 2}
Amounts owed to Group companies (320 1) (242 4)
Cther payables (115 5) (108 3)
Other taxation and social secunty (131 0) (133 6)
Accruals (115 4) {97 8)
Deferred income (49 4) (43 5)
Partnership Bonus (139 9) (178 2)
{1,326 4) {1,260 Q)
Non-current
Deferred mncome {127 8) (118 7)
(127 8) (116 7}
The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to fair value
42 Finance lease liabilities
2015 2014
£m £m
The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows
Not later than one year 09) {09
Later than one year but not more than five {2 8) (3 2)
More than five years (23 6) (24 1)
{27 3) (28 2}
Future finance charge on finance leases 119 122
Present value of finance lease liabilities (15 4) (16 0)
Of which
Not later than one year 05) {0 6)
Later than one year but not more than five {16) {19
More than five years {13 3) (13 5)

The Company's finance lease lhabilities relate to buildings and plant, property and equipment that
have been classified as finance leases in accordance with IAS 17 Leases
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43 Provisions

Long Service Customer Other Total
leave guarantee refunds
£m £m £m £m £m
At 25 January 2014 (112 8) (57 4) (26 2) {328) {229 2)
Charged to income statement (16 8) (33 3) (29 8) (79 (87 &)
Released to income statement 13 87 - 74 174
Utiised 86 205 262 124 677
At 31 January 2015 (119 7) (61 5) {29 6) {20 9) 231 7)
Of which
Current (38 8) (20 6) (29 6) (8 6) {97 6)
Non-current (80 9) (40 9) - {12 3) (134 1)

The Company has a long leave scheme, open to all Partners, which provides up to six months’ pard
leave after 25 years' service There 1s no proportional enttlement for shorter periods of service The
provision for the llabilities under the scheme is assessed on an actuanal basis, reflectng Partners’
expected service profiles, and using economic assumphtons consistent with those used for the
Group's retirement benefit obligations (note 23), with the exception of the discount rate, where a rate
appropriate to the shorter duration of the long leave liability 1s used, so as to accrue the cost over
Partners’ service periods

Provisions for service guarantee costs reflect the Group's expected hability for future repair costs
based on estimated failure rates and unit repair costs for the classes of goods sold

Prowvisions for customer refunds reflects the Group’s expected hability for returns of goods sold based
on experience of rates of return

Other provisions include reorganisation costs, accrued holiday pay and property related costs

The exact timing of utilsation of these prowvisions will vary according to the indwvidual circumstances
However, the Group’s best estimate of utilisation 1s provided above
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44 Deferred tax

44.1 Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s calculated in full on temporary differences under the llabiity method using a fax rate of
21% (2014 21%) for deferred tax assets or liabilities expected to reverse before Apnl 2015 and 20%
for those assets or habiliies expected to reverse after Apnl 2015 (2014 20%)

The movement on the deferred tax account 1s shown below

2015 2014

£m £m

Opening asset 1871 1779
Credited to income statement 83 623
Credited to other comprehensive income T (53 1)
Closing asset 2331 187 1

The movements in deferred tax assets and lhabilities during the year {prior to the offsetiing of balances
within the same junisdiction, as permitted by |IAS 12) are shown below

Deferred tax assets and labilities are only offset where there 1s a legally enforceable nght of offset

and there 1s an intention to settle the balances net

Accelerated Revaluation Rollover Other Total
tax of tand and gains
depraciation buildings
Deferred tax habilities £m £m £m £m £m
At 26 January 2013 {60 4) ©1) {73) (13) (69 1)
Credited to income statement 102 - 10 13 125
At 25 January 2014 (50 2) 0 1) (63) - (56 6)
Credited to income statement 10 - - 02 12
Charged to other comprehensive income - - - (C 6) {0 6)
At 31 January 2015 (49 2) o1) (63) (0 4) (56 0)
Capital gains Pensions Total
tax on land and provisions
and buildings
Deferred tax assots Em £m £m
At 26 January 2013 114 2356 2470
Credited to Income statement (14) 512 49 8
Charged to other comprehensive income - (53 1) {53 1)
At 25 January 2014 100 2337 2437
Credited to income statement 01 70 71
Credited to other comprehensive ncome - 383 383
At 31 January 2015 401 2790 2891

77




JOHN LEWIS PLC
Notes to the Company financial statements continued

44 Deferred tax continued

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carned forward to the extent that the reahsation of
the related tax benefit through future profits 1s probable There were no unrecognised deferred tax
assets n respect of losses for the year ended 31 January 2015 (2014 £nil)

The deferred tax balance associated with the pension deficit has been adjusted to reflect the current
tax benefit obtained in the financial year ended 30 January 2010 following the contribution of the
imited partnership interest in JLP Scottish Limited Partnership to the pension scheme {see note 23}

All of the deferred tax assets were avallable for offset against deferred tax habilittes and hence the net
deferred tax asset at 31 January 2015 was £233 1m (2014 £187 1m asset) The net deferred tax
asset 1s recoverable after more than cne year

44.2 Factors affecting tax charges in current and future years

The Finance Act 2013 reduced the main rate of corporation tax from 23% to 21% from 1 Apnl 2014
Further reductions to reduce the main rate of corporation tax to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015 have also been
enacted

The effect of the 3% rate change in the prior year was to increase the deferred tax asset by £34 5m
with a £30 7m charge being taken directly to reserves and a £3 8m tax charge to the income
statement

45 Management of financial nsks

45.1 Capital and long-term funding risk
The approach to capital and long term funding rnisks has been discussed in note 21

45 2 Ligudity risk
The approach to iquidity nsks has been discussed in note 21

The following analysis shows the contractual undiscounted cash flows payable under financial
habilities and derivative financial habilibies at the balance sheet date

Due within Due Due 2 years
1 yoar between and beyond
1and 2
years
Em £m £m
Non-derivative financial habilities
Borrowings and overdrafts (59 8) (57 8} (877 3)
Interest payments on bofrowings”® (56 8) (56 8) (432 8)
Finance lease [abilities 9 09 (25 8)
Trade and other payables {1,146 0) - -
Denvative financial habiities
Denvative contracts — receipts 208 9 228 -
Denvative contracts — payments {206 1) (22 9) -
At 31 January 2015 (1,260 7) (115 6) (1,335 6)

* Excludes annual interest of £0 1m on cumulative preference stock which have no fixed redemption date
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45 Management of financial risks continued

Due within Due batween Due 2 years

1 year 1and 2 and beyond
years
£m £m £m
Non-denvative financial liabilities
Borrowings and overdrafts (7186) - (635 1)
Interest payments on borrowings™ (44 Q) (44 0) (260 1)
Finance lease liabilities (0 9) (0 9) (26 4)
Trade and cther payables (1,082 9) - -
Denvative financial habilibes
Denvative contracts — receipts 1850 287 -
Denvative contracts — payments {190 8) (29 1) -
At 25 January 2014 (1,205 2) (45 3) (921 6) ‘

* Excludes annual interest of £0 1m on cumulative preference stock which have no fixed redemption date

Interest on borrowings 1s calculated based con the borrowing position throughout the financial year,
without taking account of future 1ssues

For the purposes of this note, the foreign currency element of forward foreign currency contracts 1s
translated at spot rates prevailing at the year end

45 3 Interest rate risk

The approach to interest rate nsks has been discussed In note 21

45.4 Foreign currency risk !
The approach to foreign currency nsks has been discussed in note 21

45.5 Credit risk

The Company has no significant exposure to an individual customer’s credit nsk due to transactions
being principally of a high volume, low value and short matunty Cash deposits and other financial
instruments give rise to credit nsk on the amounts due from counterparties These risks are managed
by restncting such transactions to an approved list of counterparties, who have a credit rating not less
than a Standard & Poor's equivalent ‘A’ rating for investments and ‘BBB’ for the provision of
operational cash management services Appropnate credit imits are designated to each counterparty

The Company considers its maximum exposure to credit risk 1s as follows

2015 2014

£m £m

Trade and other recevables 643 492
Cash and cash equivalents 2321 2325
Denvative financial instruments 96 07
306 ¢ 2824

45 6 Energy risk
The approach to energy nsks has been discussed in note 21

45 7 Sensitivity analysis
A sensitivity analysis has been performed in note 21
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46 Derivative financial instruments and financial liabilties

46 1 Basis of fair value

Fair value estimation

The different levels per the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy have been defined as follows
Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or hablites

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
hability, either directly (that 1s, as prices) or indirectly (that i1s, denved from prices)

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data (that s,
unobservable inputs)

During the year ended 31 January 2015, there have been no transfers between any levels of the IFRS
13 fair value hierarchy and there were no reclassifications of financtal assets as a result of a change
in the purpose or use of those assets

46 2 Fair value of derivative financial instruments
The faw value of denvative financial instruments 1s as follows

2015 2014

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilites

Fair value of derivative financial instruments £m £m £m £m
Currency denvatives — cash flow hedge 96 (6 6) 07 (59)

The fair value of a dernivative financial instrument represents the difference between the value of the
outstanding contracts at therr contracted rates and a valuation calculated using the forward rates of
exchange and interest rates prevailing at the balance sheet date

The fair value of the denvative financial instruments held by the Group are classified as level 2 under
the IFRS 13 farr value hierarchy, as all significant inputs to the valuation model used are based on
observable market data and are not traded in an active market

Specific valuation techriques used to value the financial instruments include quoted market prices
There have been no changes in valuation techniques from the prior year

46.3 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities held at amortised cost

The following table compares the Company's habihities held at amortised cost, where there 1s a
difference between carrying value (CV) and fair value {FV)

2015 2014
£m £m
cv Fv cv Fv

Financial liabilities
Listed bonds {864 5) (1,031 2) (569 8) (695 4)
Preference stock 23) 21) (23) (20)

The fair values of the Company's listed bonds and preference stock have been determined by
reference to market pnce quotations and are classified as Level 1 under the IFRS 13 farr value
hierarchy

For other financiat assets and labilities, there are no matenal differences between carrying value and
fair value
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47 Analysis of financial habilities

Shont-term trade payables are excluded from this analysis on the basis that they are all non-interest

bearing
Fixed rate Fleating Total
rate
Interest rate and currency analysis £m £m £m
All sterling
At 31 January 2015 (939 1} (59 8) (898 9)
At 25 January 2014 (644 7) (71 6) (716 3)
2015 2014
Maturity of financial liabilities £m £m
Repayable within one year
Bank overdrafts (59 8} {716)
Property finance leases (0 5) (0 6)
(60 3) {72 2)
Repayable between one and two years
Property finance leases (0 6) (0 5)
Bonds (57 1) -
Unamortised bond transaction costs 02 -
(57 5) (05)
Repayable between two and five years
Property finance leases {(10) {14)
Bonds {275 0) (56 6)
Unamortised bond transaction costs 12 03
(274 B) (57 7)
Repayable in more than five years
Property finance leases {13 3) (135)
Bonds (600 0) {575 0}
Unamortised bond transaction costs 93 48
Cumulative Preference Stock 23) (2 3)
(606 3) {585 9)
{998 9) (716 3)
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48 Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

2015 2014
£m £m
Profit before tax 706 4787
Dmwidend income - (500 0)
Amortisation of intangible assets 427 302
Deprectation 116 6 102 4
Net finance costs 975 914
Partnership Bonus 675 B97 |
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (2 9) {0 6)
Increase in inventones (38 7} (19 6)
Decrease/(increase) in recevables 45 (26 9)
Increase in payables 303 850
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations {18 7) (49)
{Decrease)increase In provisions (7 5) 124
Cash generated from operations 3649 3378

49 Commitments and contingencies

49.1 Capital commitments

At 31 January 2015 contracts had been entered nto for future capitai expenditure of £27 2m (2014
£31 7m) of which £23 8m (2014 £31 1m) relates to property, plant and equipment and £3 4m (2014

£0 6m) relates to intangible assets

49.2 Lease guarantees

John Lewis plc continues to provide lease guarantees in favour of the Partnership’s former associate

company, Ocado Limited, of £6 8m (2014 £6 8m)
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49 Commitments and contingencies continued

49.3 Commitments under operating leases

2015 2014

Land and Land and

Future aggregate minimum lease payments buildings buldings
Under non-cancellable operating leases, payable £m £m
Within one year 534 493
Later than one year and less than five years 168 5 160 1
After five years 1,058 5 1,048 3
2015 2014

Future aggregate mimimum lease payments Land and Land and
under non-cancellable operating leases, payable buildings buldings
after five years comprise the following £m £m
Later than five years and less than 10 years 2178 1712
Later than 10 years and less than 20 years 2891 2429
Later than 20 years and less than 40 years 1828 142 8
Later than 40 years and less than 80 years 1321 1580
After 80 years 2377 334 4
1,059 5 1,048 3

Total future sub-lease payments receivable relating to the above operating leases amounted to £1 5m
(2014 £2 6m)

50 Retirement benefit obhigations

As disclosed in note 23 to the Group financial statements, the Company's investment in the pension
scheme in JLP Scottish Limited Partnership of £83 9m (2014 £87 9m), represents a plan asset for the
Company accounts which 1s offset against the Group's obligation of £1,249 3m (2014 £1,003 4m)
The retirement benefit obligation of the Company as at 31 January 2015 was £1,165 4m (2014
£915 5m) Note 23 of the Group financial statements details the financial assumptions used

51 Share capital

2015 2014
Authorised  Issued and Authonsed Issued and
fully paid fully paid
£m £m £m £m
Equity
Deferred Qrdinary Shares
6,750,000 of £1 each 67 67 67 67
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52 Related party transactions

52.1 Loan from John Lewis Partnership plc

The loan from John Lewis Partnership plc has been disclosed in note 42 The loan 1s non-interest
beanng with no specific repayment terms

52 2 Transactions with other group companies

During the year John Lews plc entered into transactions with other group companies in respect of
supply of goods for resale and associated services totalling £14 3m (2014 £14 6m), purchase of
goods for resale totalling £56 6m (2014 £57 5m), the supply of administrative and other shared
services totalling £69 4m (2014 £57 2m) and the hire of vehicles totalling £24 9m (2014 £18 8m)

In addition, John Lewis plc settled other transactions on behalf of group compantes for administrative
convenience, such as payroll and suppher settlement Ail such transactions were charged at cost to
the relevant group company It 1s not practical to quantify these recharges

53 Subsidiary undertakings
Principal subsidiary undertakings as at 31 January 2015 were as follows

Name Principal activity Country of Percentage

Incorporation shareholdings
Herbert Parkinson Limited Weaving and making up England & Wales 100%
JLP Insurance Limited Insurance Guernsey 100%
JLP Scottish Limited Parinership Investment holding undertaking Scotland 100%
JLP Scottish Partnership Investment holding undertaking Scotland 100%
John Lewis Car Finance Limited Car finance England & Wales 100%
John Lewis Delivery Limited International delivery England & Wales 100%
John Lewis Properties plc Property holding company England & Wales 100%
Wanlrose (Jersey) Limited Food retaling Jersey 100%
Waitrose (Guemsey) Limited Food retating Guernsey 100%
Wartrose Lirmted Food retailing England & Wales 100%

The whole of the ordinary share capital of the subsidiary undertakings of John Lews plc 1s held within
the Group The list excludes non-trading subsidiary undertakings which have no matenial effect on the
accounts of the Group Except as noted above, all of these subsidiary undertakings operate wholly or
manly in the United Kingdom

As permitted by s410 of the Companies Act 2006, only principal subsidiary undertakings are shown
above A complete Iist of subsidiary undertakings will be filed with the Company's annual return

John Lewis Partnership plc 1s the Company's immediate and ultmate parent company and prepares
consolidated accounts which include the accounts of the Company

Uttimate control rests with the John Lewis Partnershup Trust Limited, which holds the equity of John
Lewis Partnership plc in trust for the benefit of the employees Both of these companies are registered
in England and Wales
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Copies of these accounts may be obtained from the Company Secretary, John Lewis Partnership plc,
171 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 5NN

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by regulation 7 of the Partnerships
(Accounts) Regulations 2008 and has therefore not appended the accounts of JLP Scothish
Partnership and JLP Scottish Limited Partnership to these accounts Separate accounts for these
partnerships are not required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the annual report and
accounts

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Accounts in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that
law the Directors have prepared the Partnership and parent company financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European
Union Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and the Company
and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period In prepanng these financial statements, the
Drrectors are required to

» Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

» State whether apphcable IFRS as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to
any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and the Partnership and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Compamies Act 2006 and, as regards the Partnership financtal statements, Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Partnership and hence
for taking reasanable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Drrectors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the Company's website Legislation
in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other junsdictions

The Directors consrder that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is farr, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess a company's
performance, business model and strategy

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed on page 2, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge:

e The Partnership financtal statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of
the Partnership, and

e The strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the Partnership, together with a description of the principal nsks and
uncertaintres that it faces

On behalf of the Board C‘M \AN_,\ .

Sir Charlie Mayfield and Loraine Woodhouse

Directors, John Lewss plc ‘\ <rQ/
16 Apnil 2015 =
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of John Lewis plc

Report on the financial statements

Qur opinion

+ John Lewts plc's Group financial statements and Company financial statements (the “financial
statements”) give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company’s affairs as at 31
January 2015 and of the Group’s profit and the Group’s and the Company’s cash flows for the year then
ended,

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") as adopted by the European Union,

+ the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accerdance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union and as applied \n accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 20086,
and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the Group financtal statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

What we have audited
John Lews plc’s Group and Company financial statements comprise
« the consohdated balance sheet and the balance sheet of the Company as at 31 January 2015,

» the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive expense for the year
then ended,

+ the consolidated and Company statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,
¢ the consohdated and Company statement of cash flows for the year then ended,and

s the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting polictes and
other explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements 1s
applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union and, as regards the company financial statements,
as appled in accordance with the provisions of the Compares Act 2006

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective jJudgements, for
example in respect of significant accounting estimates In making such estimates, they have made assumptions
and considered future events

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
Other matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our opinion
e we have not received all the infermation and explanations we require for our audit, or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

s the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns
We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of John Lewis plc
continued

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responstbibities set out on page 86, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view

Qur responsibility i1s to audit and express an opinion on the financtal statements in accordance with
applicable law and international Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) {“ISAs (UK & Ireland)”)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’'s members as a
body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose
We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any
other person to whom this report 15 shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland) An audit involves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of

» whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and the Company's
circumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed,

» the reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by the directors, and
s the overall presentation of the financial statements

We primanly focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ jJudgements against available
evidence, forming our own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we
consider necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtain audit
evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a combination of
both

In additton, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the financial statements to identify
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financtal statements and to identify any information that rs
apparently matenally \ncorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us
in the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or

inconsigtencies we consider the implicathons for cur report
{/
v -

Ranjaf Briskandan

(Sentor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PrnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London
16 Apnl 2015
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Notice of AGM

Notice 1s hereby given that the eighty-seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at
2 15pm on 4 June 2015 at Longstock House, Leckford, Stockbrnidge, Hampshire SO20 6JF

¢ To receive the Company's Annual Report and Accounts, together with the Strategic Report, the
Directors’ Report, and the Auditer's Report on those Accounts for the year ended 31 January
2015

s Tore-elect, as separate resolutions, Tracey Killen, Rachel Osborne, Mark Price, Andy Street and
Loraine Wocdhouse

¢ To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Auditor of the Company to hold office from the
conclusion of the meeting until the conclusion of the next meeting of the Company at which
accounts are laid

+ To authonse the Directors to determine the remuneration of the Auditor

eith Hubber
Company Secretary
171 Victoria Street, London SW1E 5NN
16 Apnl 2015 s

AL

The Annual Report and Accounts are sent to all members

A proxy need not be a member of the company, but a proxy who 1s not a member has only the nights
conferred by section 329 of the Companies Act 2006 Ta be effective, a proxy form must reach the
company’s registered office not later than forty-eight hours before the time for holding the meeting
For the converuence of members a form of proxy is enclosed
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Partnership information

Partners JLP Scotland Linited
John Lewis Partnership Pensions Trust
John Lewis plc

Independent Auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLLP
Bankers Royat Bank of Scotland PLC
Registered office John Lews, 69 St James Centre, Edinburgh, EH1 3SP
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JLP Scottish Limited Partnership

Strategic report for 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015

Review of performance
Key performance indicators

2015* 2014

£'000 £'000
Profit for the year 5,545.5 6,798 7
Investment in JLP Scottish Partnership 99,925.1 99,950 1
Net assets/partners’ interests 100,000.2 100,000 2

*53 weeks

The statement of comprehensive income on page 6 shows a profit for the 53 weeks ended 31 January
2015 of £5,545,500 (2014 £6,798,700) principally as a result of the distnibutton received from JLP
Scottish Partnership

The balance sheet on page 6 shows the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership’s financial position at the year
end The partners’ funds as at 31 January 2015 were £100,000,200 (2014 £100,000,200)

No significant changes in the activittes of the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership are anticipated in the
forthcoming year

Principal risks and uncertainties

JLP Scottish Limited Parthership’s financial and operation 1ssues are managed on a Partnership wide
basis by John Lewis Partnership plc (‘the Partnership'} and so, where 1t I1s relevant, the Strategic report
and General partner's report provides information in respect of the Partnership Detaills of principal risks
and uncertainties are included within pages 44 to 45 of the Partnership’s Annual Report and Accounts

JLP Scottish Limited Partnership’s principal risks and uncertainties are in ltine with those of the
Partnership However, the rnisks that are most relevant to the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership are
economic environment and property valuation

Detatls of key mitigations to these pnincipal risks and uncertainties are presented in pages 46 and 47 of
the Partnership’s Annual Report and Accounts

For and on behalf of the general partner

NQ@

Director
John Lews plc
16 Apnl 2015
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General partner’s report for 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015

The general partner presents Its report and the audited financial statements of JLP Scottish Limited
Partnership for the 53 weeks to 31 January 2015

Principal activity
The principal activity of JLP Scottish Limited Partnership 1s an investment holding partnership

The JLP Scottish Limited Partnership was registered (nhumber 7561) in Scotland as a imited partnership
by the Registrar of Companies in Scotland on 17 December 2009 and I1s a partnership between John
Lews plc, JLP Scotland Limited and John Lewis Partnership Pensions Trust as trustee of the John Lewis
Partnership Trust for Pensions The JLP Scottish Limited Partnership allocates and distributes income to
its partners in accordance with an Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement dated 26
January 2010, which has been further revised on 27 January 2012, following agreement of the partners

The JLP Scottish Limited Partnership has an interest in JLP Scottish Partnership, which i1s a property
holding partnership established pursuant to a Partnership Agreement with John Lewis Properties plc and
it receives income and capital distributions from JLP Scottish Partnership in accordance with that
agreement

General partner and manager
John Lewis plc

171 Victoria Street

London

SW1E 5NN

Going concern

The JLP Scottish Limited Partnership 1s currently in a net assets position The Directors of the general
partner are of the opinion that the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future The Directors of the general partner are satisfied with
the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership’s results and its financia! position and will continue to pursue
suitable business opportunities

Disclosure of information to the independent auditors
Each of the persons who are a Director of the general partner at the date of approval of this report
confirms that

1 so far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit infformation of which the JLP Scottish
Limited Partnership’s auditors are unaware, and

2 the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish the JLP Scottish Limited
Partnership's auditors are aware of that information

General partner's responsibility statement
The Directors of the general partner are responsible for preparing the Strategic report, General partner's
report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors of the general partner to prepare financial statements for each
financial year Under that law the Directors of the general partner have prepared the financial statements
in accardance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework (FRS 101)




JLP Scottish Limited Partnership

Under company law the Directors of the general partner must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and farr view of the state of affairs of the JLP Scottish Limited
Partnership and of the profit or loss of the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership for that year In preparing
these financial statements, the Directors of the general partner are required to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

+ make Judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

¢ state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

« notify its shareholders in writing about the use of disclosure exemptions, If any, of FRS 101 used in
the preparation of financial statements, and

¢ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume
that the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership will continue In business

The Directors of the general partner are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the JLP Scotiish Limited Partnership's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to
qualifying partnerships They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the JLP Scottish Limited
Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
rregulanties

For and on behalf of the general pariner

WCCL

Director
John Lewts plc
16 April 2015




JLP Scottish Limited Partnership

Statement of comprehensive income
for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015

2015 2014
Note £'000 £'000
Distribution receved 5,548.5 6,801 9
2 Administrative expenses {3.0) (32)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the
year 5,545.5 6,798 7
* 53 week year
Balance sheet
as at 31 January 2015
2015 2014
Noles £000 £'000
Non current assets
3 Investment in JLP Scottish Partnership 99,925.1 99,950 1
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 91.6 63 6
91.6 63 6
Total assets 100,016.7 100,013 7
Current llabhilities
Amounts due to John Lewis plc {13.5) (10 3)
4 Other payables {3.0) (3 2)
Total liabllities {16.5) (13 5)
Net assets attributable to partners 100,000.2 100,000 2
Represented by:
Partners’ interests
5 Partners' capital and other interests 100,000.2 100,000 2

These financial statements were approved by the general partner on 16 Apnl 2015, and signed on its
behalf by

t\‘ CQ.L_

Director
John Lewis plc

16 Aprit 2015 Registered number 7561
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting convention and basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, in
particular Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101) and in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to qualifying partnerships

FRS 101 sets out a reduced disclosure framework for a "qualifying entity” as defined Iin the standard
which addresses the financial reporting requirements and disclosure exemptions in the individual financial
statements of qualfying entities that otherwise apply the recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
The JLP Scottish Limited Partnership 1s a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 101

The disclosure exempiions adopted by the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership in accordance with FRS 101
are as follows
e The requirements of IAS 7 to present on cash flow statements
e The requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24, Related Party Transactions, and the requirements of
IAS 24 to disclose related party transactrons between two or more members of a group for wholly
owned subswdiaries
¢ The requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 to disclose information assessing the possible
impact of new i1ssued standards but which are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations were adopted by the JLP Scottish Limited
Partnership for the 53 weeks ended 31 January 2015 and have not had a significant impact on the JLP
Scottish Limited Partnership's profit for the year, equity or disclosures

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 ‘Investment Entities’,

Amendments to IAS 32 'Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’,
Amendments to |1AS 36 ‘Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets’,
Amendments to IAS 39 'Novation of Denvatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting’,
Amendments to IFRIC 21 ‘Levies’

The JLP Scottish Limited Partnership ts an intermediate parent entity and 1s exempt from preparing
consolidated financial statements as noted 1n section 400 of the Companies Act 2006

Operating costs
Operating costs are charged to the statement of comprehensive iIncome on an accruals basis

Distributions
Distnbutions are credited to the statement of comprehensive iIncome when receved

Investments
Investments are carried at cost and consist of an interest in JLP Scottish Partnership

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank

Taxation

No tax s recorded in the financial statements of the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership, as all tax habilities
are liabilities of the partners and not the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership

2 Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses comprise auditor remuneration of £3,000 (2014 £3,200)

The JLP Scottish Limited Partnership had no employees durning the current year {2014 nil)
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3 Investment in JLP Scottish Partnership

£'000
Cost
As at 26 January 2013 99,975 1
As at 25 January 2014 99,950 1
Decrease in investment (26 0)
As at 31 January 2015 99,925.1

JLP Scoftish Limted Partnership has a 69% (2014 65%) mvestment in JLLP Scottish
Partnership, a property holding partnership, as set out in the General partner’'s report on page
4 The percentage investment in JLP Scottish Partnership increased durning the year following
the return of capital from JLP Scottish Partnership to John Lewis Properties plc, the other
partner of JLP Scottish Partnership

JLP Scottish Limited Partnership's investment in JLP Scottish Partnership has a carrying value
of £102,092,100 at 31 January 2015 (2014 £103,373,200) including capital (£99,925,100) and
other interests (£2,167,000) The value of the mvestment in JLP Scottish Partnership
decreased during the year following the return of capital from JLP Scottish Partnership and the
share of profits and income distributions in accordance with the terms of the Amended and
Restated Limited Partnership Agreement

4 Other Payables
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Accruals 3.0 32
5 Partners’ interests
Total Share of Distnbution Total
interesis at interests at
25 January income 31 January
2014 profit 2015
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Limited Parthers:
JLP Scotland Limited 01 - - 0.1
John Lewis Partnership 95,000 O 55177 (5,617 7) 95,000.0
Pensions Trust
General Partner:
John Lews plc 5,000 1 278 (27 8) 5,000.1
Total pariners’ interests 100,000 2 5,545 5 (5,545 5) 100,000.2
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Total Share of Distnbution Total
interests at Interests at
26 January income 25 January
2013 profit 2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Limited Partners:
JLP Scotiand Limited 01 - - 01
John Lewis Partnership 95,0000 6,764 7 (6,764 7) 95,000 0
Pensions Trust
General Partner:
John Lewis plc 5,000 1 340 (34 0) 5,000 1
Total partners’ interests 100,000 2 6,798 7 (6,798 7) 100,000 2

6 Ultimate controlling party

John Lewis plc 1s the parent company of the smallest group to consohdate the financial statements of
JLP Scottish Limited Partnership John Lewis Partnership plc, the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership's
ultimate parent company, 1s the parent company of the largest group to consoldate these financial
statements Ultimate control rests with John Lewis Partnership Trust Limited, which holds the equity of
John Lewis Partnership plc in trust for the benefit of the employees These companies are registered in

England and Wales JLP Scotlish Limited Partnership i1s registered in Scotland

Copies of these financial statements may be obtained from the Company Secretary, John Lewis
Partnership, Partnership House, Carlisle Place, London, SW1P 18X
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Independent auditors’ report to the partners of JLP Scottish
Limited Partnership

Report on the financial statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, JLP Scottish Limited Partnership’s financial statements (the “financial statements”)

* give a true and farr view of the state of the qualifying partnership's affairs as at 31 January 2015
and of its profit for the year then ended,

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied
to qualfying partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008

What we have audited

JLP Scottish Limited Partnership’s financial statements comprise
¢ the balance sheet as at 31 January 2015,
» the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended, and

+ the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied In the preparation of the financial statements 1s
applicable law and Umited Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”

In applying the financial reporting framework, the general partner has made a number of subjective
Judgements, for example 1n respect of significant accounting estmates In making such estimates, it has
made assumptions and considered future events

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our opinion
* we have not receved all the informatton and explanations we require for our audit, or

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us, or

* the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibihty

General partner’s remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our opinion, certain disclosures of
general partner's remuneration specsfied by law are not made We have no exceptions to report arising
from this responsibility
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the general partner

As explained more fully in the General partner’s responsibilities statement set out on page 4, the general
partner I1s responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view

Our responsibiity 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements In accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland}") Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the members of the qualifying
partnership as a body in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships
by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving this
opinton, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with I1SAs (UK & Ireland) An audit involves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This
includes an assessment of

» whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the qualfying partnership’s circumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,

+ the reasonableness of significant accounting estrmates made by the general partner, and
+ the overall presentation of the financial statements

We primarnily focus our work In these areas by assessing the general partner's judgements against
avallable evidence, forming our own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial
statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techmques, to the extent we
consider necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtain audit evidence
through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information 1n the financial statements to identify
matenial inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that 1s
apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in
the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

(G

Ranjan Srniskandan (Semor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

16 Aprd 2015
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